
 

 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Online agendas and results 
available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

  
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE GUADALUPE TOWN COUNCIL 

 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 9, 2019 

6:00 P.M. 
GUADALUPE TOWN HALL 

9241 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI, COUNCIL CHAMBERS  
GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

 
Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Town of Guadalupe Council 
and to the general public that the Guadalupe Town Council will hold a meeting, open to the public, on 
Monday, December 9, 2019, at 6:00 P.M., at Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, 
Council Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona.  

 
AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 1.  Approval of the November 14, 2019, Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 
E. CALL TO THE PUBLIC. An opportunity is provided to the public to address the Council on items 
that are not on the agenda or included on the consent agenda. A total of 3 minutes will be provided for 
the Call to the Audience agenda item, unless the Council requests an exception to this limit. Please 
note that those wishing to comment on agenda items posted for action will be provided the opportunity 
at the time the item is heard. 
    
F. MAYOR and COUNCIL PRESENTATIONS:  None. 
 
G.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS: 
 
1. MARICOPA COUNTY ANIMAL CARE AND CONTROL:  Staff will report on current animal care 
and control activities in cooperation with Maricopa County Animal Care and Control and current Town 
Codes related to animal control.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk and Town 
Attorney.   
 
2. GRANT PROGRAMMINNG UPDATE:  Staff will report on the current status of grant requests and 
grant programming, including Community Development Block Grants, Congestion Mitigation and Air 
Quality Program grants and gaming grant revenue sharing.  Council may provide direction to the Town 
Manager / Clerk. 
 
3. AK-CHIN INDIAN COMMUNITY GAMING GRANT – RESOLUTION NO. R2019.22:  Council will 
consider and may adopt Resolution No. R2019.22 authorizing the Mayor to execute an 
intergovernmental agreement, (IGA C2019-31), between the Ak-Chin Indian Community and the Town 
of Guadalupe to accept a 12% Gaming Grant in the amount of $70,000 for the purpose of funding a 
one-time purchase of 18 complete sets of firefighter protective clothing including: coats, pants, 
suspenders, gloves and hoods; and, sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this agreement.  
Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk. 
 

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Online agendas and results 
available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

4. SPEED HUMPS/BUMPS AND TRAFFIC CONTROL:   Council will consider a traffic study analysis 
and traffic calming suggestions in response to a September 9, 2019, request by the Pascua Yaqui Tribe 
Housing Division to install speed bumps on various Town streets.  Council may provide direction to the 
Town Manager / Clerk.   

5. PUBLIC HEARING – HEALTH AND SANITATION ORDINANCE (ORDINANCE NO. O2019.04):  
Introduce and hold a public hearing for the adoption of Ordinance No. O2019.04, amending Chapter 
10, Health and Sanitation, , Article 10-1, Garbage and Trash Collection, of the town of Guadalupe Code 
of Ordinances by adding language relating to real property owner or occupant requirements for solid 
waste collection services.   Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk. (related to G6) 
 
6.  HEALTH AND SANITATION ORDINANCE (ORDINANCE NO. O2019.04):  Council will consider 
and may adopt Ordinance No. O2019.04, amending Chapter 10, Health and Sanitation, Article 10-1, 
Garbage and Trash Collection, of the town of Guadalupe Code of Ordinances by adding language 
relating to real property owner or occupant requirements for solid waste collection services.  Council 
may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.  (related to G5) 
 
7.  SOLID WASTE FUND FINANCIAL STATUS REPORT:  Staff will provide an overview of the 
status of the Solid Waste Fund including current revenues and expenses, historic trends, and 
comparisons to other municipalities.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk. 
 
8.  AWARD OF BID – SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES:  Council will consider the staff 
recommendation to award a ten-year contract with two consecutive one year renewal options to RAD 
Right Away Disposal Service, to provide solid waste disposal and recycling services.  Council may 
award the contract in its substantial form to RAD Right Away Disposal Services and direct the Town 
Manager / Clerk to execute the complete contract based on selection of service option.    Service would 
begin on March 1, 2020.   
 
9.  MARICOPA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGES DISTRICT EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT: Council will consider and may take action to approve an agreement with the Maricopa 
County Community Colleges District for the administration of tuition-free programs related to various 
career fields for qualified Town of Guadalupe residents.  The programs will be held from January 
through March, 2020.   Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk. 
 
H. TOWN MANAGERS’ COMMENTS 
 
I. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


December 5, 2019 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk  

RE:  December 9, 2019 Town Council Regular Meeting Information Report  

The purpose of this report is to provide brief information regarding each of the meeting’s agenda items. 

Agenda Items: 

G1.  Maricopa County Animal Care and Control:  Staff will report on current animal care and control activities in 
cooperation with Maricopa County Animal Care and Control, including current Town codes related to animal control. 
Town Manager / Clerk and Town Attorney would seek direction from Town Council.  (Pages 17-34)  

G2.  Grant Programming Update:  Staff will provide an update of the 2019 grant activity with a focus on tribal revenue 
sharing grant requests and a review of specific project grants from the past four years.   During the past four years, 
$7.15MM has been awarded to the Town from various agencies for capital projects, equipment needs, and for providing 
Town services.  These include neighborhood flood control projects, Safe Routes to School Study, fire station 
renovations, firefighter equipment, street paving projects, and Community Action Program Office and Senior Center 
services.  Of note, the $3.5 federal transportation grant through MAG will fund the renovation of Avenida del Yaqui, 
with the Arizona Department of Transportation serving as the project manager.  Design for this project will start in 
January 2020, with construction scheduled for spring 2021. 

Regarding 2019 gaming grants, to date, three grants totaling $164,000 were awarded to the Town, with three grant 
requests currently under consideration.   Overall, 18 grant request applications totaling $1.485 million have been 
submitted to five entities, five grants submitted to the Pascua Yaqui Tribe remain under consideration.    Pages (35-
36)  

G3.  Ak-Chin Gaming Grant (Resolution No. R2019.22):  The Ak-Chin Indian Community has awarded the Town of 
Guadalupe $70,000 in 12% gaming grant funds for a one-time purchase of 18 complete sets of firefighter protective 
clothing including: coat, pants, suspenders, gloves and hoods and refers to Article I, 1.2c, of the IGA.  The Town 
Council adopted Resolution No. R2019.01 on June 27, 2019 authorizing the submittal of this grant request.  Should 
Council adopt Resolution No. 2019.22, staff will initiate the equipment purchase.   Resolution No. R2019.22 and IGA 
C2019-31 are included.  Pages (37-51) 

G4. Speed Humps:  At the September 12, 2019, Regular Council Meeting, requests were made for speed control on 
Calle Senu, Calle Naiki, Calle Vahi and Calle Woi by the Pascua Yaqui Tribe Housing Division.  Their requesting letter 
is attached.  In response to this request, Town staff, Town Engineer, and the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office examined 
traffic conditions, including vehicle volume counts and speeds, and pedestrian activity. 

Traffic speed and traffic volume data were collected at seven locations in the area on days in September or October 
for a four to five hour period.  Specifically studied was eastbound and westbound traffic on: 

• Calle Senu at Calle Naki.

Page 3



2 
 

Other locations studied were:  
• Calle Tomi at Calle Fortunato Serrano: northbound  
• Calle Tomi at Calle Fortunato Serrano: southbound 
• Calle Fortunato Serrano: southbound 
• Calle Vauo Nawi: northbound  

 
Observed traffic conditions during these “snapshot in time” periods are as follows:  traffic volumes and speeds 
measured at all locations were at levels to be expected on residential street with average speed below the 25 mile per 
hour (mph) speed limit and the 85% speed near 25 mph speed limit.  Only one location Calle Senu at Calle Naki 
recorded more than 20 % of vehicles exceeding the speed limit.  Data collected at each location are reported on the 
attached tables.    
 

Location Average 
Speed  

85% Speed % of Vehicles Exceeding 
Speed Limit 

Calle Senu at Calle Naki. Eastbound  18.61 25 13.06%  
Calle Senu at Calle Naki. Westbound 20.60 27 22.33% 
Calle Tomi at Calle Fortunato Serrano: 
northbound  

19.27 25 13.44% 

Calle Tomi at Calle Fortunato Serrano: 
southbound 

20.46 26 15.82%  

Calle Tomi at Calle Fortunato Serrano: 
southbound 

18.79 25 7.36% 

Calle Fortunato Serrano: southbound 13.40 17 0% 
Calle Vauo Nawi: northbound  17.23 23 6.53% 
 
From a traffic engineering perspective, the data does not suggest any additional traffic speed controls are warranted. 
 
However, field observations taken on October 30 and 31 by the Town Engineer and Town Manager when the speed 
trailer was not present suggested a tendency of vehicles traveling northbound and southbound on Calle Tomi and 
westbound on Calle Senu to exceed the 25 mph speed limit.   
 
It was also observed a vandalized 20 mph speed limit sign is located on Calle Vahi, east of Avenida del Yaqui and a 
15 mph speed limit sign on Calle Tomi south of Calle Fortunato Serrano.   
 
Existing speed bumps are located:  

• One on Calle Tomi south of Calle Fortunato Serrano  
• Five on the Calle Fortunato Serrano loop 
• Three on the Calle Brigido Valenzuela loop 

 
Based on this review and field observation, new and replaced or relocated speed humps and associated advanced 
warning signs are suggested as follows and referring to the Neighborhood Traffic Safety Presentation.   Pages (52-75) 
Referring to the map, the following improvements are suggested:   
 
Location:  Suggestion:  

A. Replace existing 20 speed limit sign with 25 mph speed limit sign. 
B. Install pedestrian warning sign on Calle Senu approximately 100 feet east of Avenida del Yaqui. 
C. Relocate speed hump to Calle Senu: approximately 215 feet west of the Calle Senu and Calle Naki 

intersection.  
D. Install new speed hump on Calle Senu: approximately 190 feet east of the Calle Senu and Calle Naki 

intersection.  
E. Calle Tomi:  approximately 65 feet south of the south Calle Tomi and Calle Fortunato Serrano intersection 

Page 4



3 
 

F. Relocate speed hump to Calle Tomi:  approximately 95 feet north of the north Calle Tomi and Calle 
Fortunato Serrano intersection  

G. Remove existing sign  
H. Remove existing sign and replace with pedestrian sign 
I. Remove existing sign and replace with 25 mph sign.  

 
Funding:   
The currently approved $438K CDBG repaving project allows funding for the speed humps at no cost to the Town.   
 
To do so, two of the existing speed bumps on Calle Fortunato Serrano and one on Calle Brigido Valenzuela will be 
removed and not replaced at current locations.  Rather these three will be installed at the recommended locations.  To 
note, three of the five speed bumps on Calle Fortunato Serrano and one of the two Calle Brigido Valenzuela will be 
replaced as part of the $438K CDBG repaving project.  Map A illustrates the current and recommended speed 
bump/hump locations.  Should Council chose to proceed, installations would occur as part of the CDBG repaving 
project scheduled to begin in spring 2020.    
 
Traffic sign changes are the responsibility of the Town.  An estimated cost for four new signs, posts and blue stake is 
approximately $3,000.  These signs can be installed prior to the speed hump installation within the next four to six 
weeks.  
 
Regarding speed limits, per Town Code, speed limits on all streets in the area are 25 mph: 
Town Code Section 13-2-13 Speed Limits:  (Ordinance 88-04) 

 
 
  

Page 5



4 
 

Ordinance 95-01: 

 
 
 
G5 and 6.  Health and Sanitation Ordinance (Ordinance No. O2019.04):  Council will consider adding language to 
Chapter 10, Health and Sanitation of the Town Code to more clearly articulate the responsibility of a real property 
owner or resident of a property if not owner occupied to obtain solid waste collection services from a provider licensed 
by the Town in accordance with existing Town Code related to solid waste removal and collection.   As the Town 
considers revising solid waste collection services, fortifying our Code is recommended. Page (76)  
 
G7.  Solid Waste Fund Financial Status Report:  The status of the Solid Waste Fund including current revenues and 
expenses, historic trends and comparisons to other municipalities will be presented.  This information provides the 
foundation, need and reasoning for the solid waste collection services request for proposal solicitation for services and 
competitive fees and pricing.  The Solid Waste Services Financial Report provides Town solid waste service 
background data and comparative information.  Pages (77-93)  
 
G8. Award of Bid – Solid Waste Collection Services:   The Town Manager is recommending that RAD Right Away 
Disposal be awarded a contract in substantial form for residential solid waste and disposal services for an eight year 
term commencing on March 1, 2020 through February 29, 2028 with two renewals automatically and continuously for 
two (2) successive periods of one (1) year unless Town or Contractor gives written notice sixty (60) days in advance 
with the total length of the contract not to exceed ten (10) years from the original signing of the agreement.   
 
Due to the unique circumstances, staff is asking Council to approve a contract with RAD in substantial form.  The 
complete and final contract would then be considered by Town Council for final approval at the January 9, 2020 Council 
meeting.   
 
 In addition, staff recommends:  

1. Twice per week curbside solid waste service and no curbside recycling service at a fee of $20.14 per 
month. 

2. Maintain the current $20.75 monthly fee resulting in no fee increase for 18 months through June 2021.   
3. Apply the 61 cents to the anticipated fee increases in FY2021/22. 
4. Maintain monthly billing through the City of Tempe.  
5. Provide a recycling rolloff at the Town Maintenance Yard for voluntary recycling. 
6. Provide 2 rolloffs for public disposal and 2 rolloffs for Town disposal at the Town Maintenance Yard. 
7. Provide quarterly community rolloffs at 8 locations throughout Town. 
8. Establish annual street, sidewalk and alley repair fund in Solid Waste cost center.    

Page 6



5 
 

   
The Solid Waste Services Contract Recommendation Report provides RFP process and selection information.  Pages 
(94-112). 
 
G9.  Maricopa County Community Colleges District Educational Services Agreement:  Staff is recommending 
approval of an educational services agreement with the Maricopa County Community Colleges District to partner with 
GateWay Community College to offer three career programs:  Certified Logistics Associate, Electrical Installer and 
Career Foundations.  All three programs will be offered tuition free to Gudalaupe residents and run from January 2020 
through March 2020.  Programs will be held at the Mercado, South Mountain Community College, and GateWay 
Community College locations.    The intent of this program is to offer no cost career educational programs to Guadalupe 
residents.   The program is being funded from the $70,000 Gila River 12% gaming grant for career development that 
was awarded to the Town earlier this year. (Pages 113-118) 

Page 7



 

1 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Online agendas and results 
available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

   
 

 
Minutes 

Town Council Regular Meeting 
November 14, 2019 

 

Minutes of the Guadalupe Town Council Regular Meeting held on Thursday, November 14, 2019, at 
6:00 P.M., at Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Guadalupe, Arizona, in the Council 
Chambers. 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Molina called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Valerie Molina, Councilmember Mary Bravo, Councilmember Anita   
Cota, Councilmember Gloria Cota, Councilmember Elvira Osuna, and Councilmember Joe Sánchez 
 
Councilmember Absent:  Vice Mayor Ricardo Vital 
 
Staff Present:  Jeff Kulaga – Town Manager / Clerk, Wayne Clement – Fire Chief, Jennifer Drury – 
Assistant to the Town Manager, Robert Thaxton – Finance Director, Nancy Holguin – Community 
Development,  Veronica Matuz – Senior Center Director, Kay Savard, Deputy Town Clerk, and David 
Ledyard – Town Attorney,  
 
C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Councilmember Anita Cota provided the invocation.  Mayor Molina then led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Councilmember Anita Cota left the meeting at 6:01 p.m. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Motion by Councilmember Sánchez to approve the October 10, 2019, Town Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes; second by Councilmember Osuna.  Motion passed unanimously 5-0. 
 
 1.  Approved the October 10, 2019, Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 
Councilmember Anita Cota returned to the meeting at 6:03 p.m. 
 
E. CALL TO THE PUBLIC.    No one spoke. 
    
F. MAYOR and COUNCIL PRESENTATIONS:  None. 
 
G.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS: 
 
1. PUBLIC HEARING – SMALL CELL ANTENNAS ORDINANCE (ORDINANCE NO. O2019.01)  
Introduced and held a  public hearing for an ordinance declaring the documents entitled “The 2019 
Town of Guadalupe Wireless Facilities in the Right-of-Way Standard Terms and Conditions” and “the 
2019 Town of Guadalupe Design Standards, Concepts and Requirements – Wireless Facilities in the 
Right-of-Way” as public records; amending the Code of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona by adopting 
new Chapter 16A Wireless Facilities in the Right-of-Way; Microcell Equipment related to the use of the 
public right-of-way in the Town by wireless providers and entities with microcell equipment on strands 
in the Town; and establishing an effective date.  (related to G2) 
 

  

Page 8

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

2 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Online agendas and results 
available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

Motion by Councilmember Sánchez to open the public hearing; second by Councilmember 
Gloria Cota.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
Mayor Molina opened the public hearing.  No one spoke. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Osuna to close the public hearing; second by Councilmember Anita 
Cota.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
2. SMALL CELL ANTENNAS ORDINANCE (ORDINANCE NO. O2019.01)  Councilmembers 
adopted ORDINANCE NO. O2019.01 declaring the documents entitled “2019 Town of Guadalupe 
Wireless Facilities in the Right-of-Way Standard Terms and Conditions” and “2018 Town of Guadalupe 
Design Standards, Concepts and Requirements – Wireless Facilities in the Right-of-Way” as public 
records; adopting regulations and requirements for the use of the Town’s right-of-way by wireless 
providers and by owners of microcells on strands; and establishing an effective date.  (related to G1) 
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that agenda items G1 – G6 are related to telecommunication 
regulations originating at the Federal Communications Commission and Arizona Revised Statutes that 
impact cities and towns.  Mr. Kulaga introduced Susan Goodwin, Gust Rosenfelt representative, to 
provide an overview of the agenda items concerning telecommunications. 
 
Ms. Goodwin stated that the Arizona State Legislature adopted legislation preempting cities and towns 
from how small antenna installations are regulated.  The proposed ordinance adopts two documents:  
“2019 Town of Guadalupe Wireless Facilities in the Right-of-Way Standard Terms and Conditions” and 
“2018 Town of Guadalupe Design Standards, Concepts and Requirements – Wireless Facilities in the 
Right-of-Way”.  Adoption of this ordinance would align the Town of Guadalupe with what other cities 
and towns in the Valley are doing in response to federal and state regulations. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Anita Cota to approve agenda item G2; second by Councilmember 
Osuna.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
3. PUBLIC HEARING – RIGHT-OF-WAY REGULATORY ORDINANCE (ORDINANCE NO. 
O2019.02)   Introduced and held a public hearing to adopt an ordinance declaring that document entitled 
“Town of Guadalupe Right-of-Way Regulation Ordinance dated November 14, 2019” as a public record; 
amending the Guadalupe Town Code, Chapter 8 Business Regulations by adding new Article 8-
5 Construction within Public Rights-Of-Way; Location and Relocation of Facilities in Public Rights-of-
Way; and establishing an effective date.  (related to G4) 
 
Motion by Councilmember Anita Cota to open the public hearing; second by Councilmember 
Sánchez.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
Mayor Molina opened the public hearing.  No one spoke. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Osuna to close the public hearing; second by Councilmember Bravo.  
Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
4. RIGHT-OF-WAY REGULATORY ORDINANCE (ORDINANCE NO. O2019.02)  Councilmembers 
adopted ORDINANCE NO. O2019.02 declaring that document entitled “Town of Guadalupe Right-of-
Way Regulation Ordinance dated November 14, 2019” as a public record; amending the Guadalupe 
Town Code, Chapter 8 Business Regulations by adding new Article 8-5 Construction within Public 
Rights-Of-Way; Location and Relocation of Facilities in Public Rights-of-Way; and establishing an 
effective date.  (related to G3) 
 
Susan Goodwin, Gust Rosenfeld representative, stated that the proposed ordinance governs work that 
is conducted in Town right-of-way in a non-discriminatory and fair manner.  There is legislation that 
requires cities and towns to ensure that the telecommunication industry is not discriminated against.  

 The proposed ordinance applies to anyone working in Town right-of-way.  The ordinance protects the 

Page 9

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

3 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Online agendas and results 
available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

public and the Town; provides permitting requirements for working in the right-of-way; and, aligns the 
Town with practices in other Arizona cities and towns. 
 
In response to questions, Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that this ordinance strengthens 
the regulations for working in Town right-of-way.  In terms of the cost to relocate lines in right-of-way, it 
would depend on where the lines would be located and what impact the project would have in the area.  
Ms. Goodwin stated that the cost of relocating lines is paid for by the customer.   
 
Motion by Councilmember Bravo to approve agenda item G4; second by Councilmember Anita 
Cota.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – VIDEO SERVICES REGULATORY ORDINANCE (ORDINANCE NO. 
O2019.03)    Introduced and held a  public hearing to adopt an ordinance declaring that document 
entitled “Town of Guadalupe Video Services Regulatory Ordinance” dated November 14, 2019 as a 
public record; amending the Town Code of Guadalupe, Arizona, by adopting a new Chapter 16B Video 
Services relating to the regulation of video service by the Town and the licensing of video service 
providers in the Town; establishing a purpose; setting forth definitions; providing for license 
requirements; imposing fees; setting forth violations; and establishing an effective date.  (related to G6) 
 
Motion by Councilmember Sánchez to open the public hearing; second by Councilmember 
Osuna.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
Mayor Molina opened the public hearing.  No one spoke. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Anita Cota to close the public hearing; second by Councilmember 
Osuna.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
6. VIDEO SERVICES REGULATORY ORDINANCE (ORDINANCE NO. O2019.03)    
Councilmembers adopted ORDINANCE NO. O2019.03 declaring that document entitled “Town of 
Guadalupe Video Services Regulatory Ordinance” dated November 14, 2019 as a public record; 
amending the Town Code of Guadalupe, Arizona, by adopting a new Chapter 16B Video Services 
relating to the regulation of video service by the Town and the licensing of video service providers in 
the Town; establishing a purpose; setting forth definitions; providing for license requirements; imposing 
fees; setting forth violations; and establishing an effective date.  (related to G5) 
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that what is currently known as cable is now referred to as 
video services.   
 
Susan Goodwin, Gust Rosenfeld representative, stated that the cable industry worked with the Arizona 
State Legislature on a video services statute.  Adoption of this ordinance is recommended because of 
how complicated the legislation is; and, to provide staff guidance in processing video services 
applications for telecommunication providers that aligns with the legislation.  From January 1, 2020 to 
June 30, 2020, cable companies can file applications for a license to operate within cities and towns.  
Staff has a thirty day timeframe in which to process each application.  Council approval of applications 
is not required.   
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that the Town approved a contract extension in July, 2018, 
with Cox Communications (Cox), prior to the recent legislation.  The contract extension extends the Cox 
contract through March, 2020.  Staff anticipates that Cox will be filing an application for a license to 
operate in the Town prior to the expiration of the existing contract.  Ms. Goodwin added that when Cox 
applies for a video services license, the new legislation will apply. 
 
  

Page 10

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

4 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Online agendas and results 
available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

In response to a question regarding fees, Ms. Goodwin stated that the Town’s fee from video service 
providers is 5% of gross revenues.  Staff has posted a Notice of Intent to implement associated fees for 
filing a license application, and operating fees; however, there are cost offsets that will lower the amount 
video service providers owe to cities and towns, as a result of federal and state legislation.   
 
In response to a question on how service providers pay their 5% to local jurisdictions, Ms. Goodwin 
stated that the 5% of gross revenue, as stated in the statute, is remitted to cities and towns, along with 
a report that outlines deductions and offsets.   
 
Motion by Councilmember Bravo to approve agenda item G6; second by Councilmember Osuna.  
Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
7. CLAIMS:   Councilmembers approved the check register for October 2019, totaling $429,460.94. 

Motion by Councilmember Bravo to approve agenda item G7; second by Councilmember Gloria 
Cota.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 

8. WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM ASSESSMENT REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS:   
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that the Town Engineer, Dibble Engineering (Dibble) has 
prepared a comprehensive analysis of the Town’s 11.5 miles of sewer system. Dibble power washed 
the system and ran cameras through the system; and, rated the condition of the Town’s sewer pipes.  
He introduced Vince Gibbons and Rick Fradenburg, Dibble Engineering representatives. 
 
Rick Fradenburg, Dibble Engineering, stated that the wastewater collection system (WCS) is critical to 
public health and safety.  System failure could lead to the spread of diseases, injury, or property 
damage.  WCS assets, sewer line main pipe, access manholes, and cleanouts, have been documented 
in a geographic information system (GIS) database.   
 
Manholes were numbered and their conditions were rated.  A condition assessment of the sewer pipes 
was then conducted.  Defective pipes were assigned grades based on their condition, with associated 
recommendations.  Defects were categorized as structural, operation and maintenance, and 
construction features.  Mr.  Fradenburg provided examples of various defects and noted that tree roots 
are interfering with various segments of sewer pipes throughout Town. 
 
Mr. Fradenburg stated that Dibble Engineering has prepared a 5-year rehabilitation schedule to repair 
and replace system deficiencies.  Recommendations include urgent, priority, and moderate repair 
needs; and, in five years, that the Town conduct a follow up WCS assessment to monitor sewer pipe 
conditions.  Approximately 100 feet of sewer line pipes are in urgent need of repair.  In addition, the 
assessment revealed that there are 24 private properties where sewer pipes have roots or deterioration 
where the private property portion of the pipe joins the Town’s main sewer line.  There is also a roach 
infestation problem in the WCS.   
 
In response to a question regarding the location of a sewer line pipe collapsing, Mr. RRR stated that 
the location is the alley between Montezuma and Avenida del Yaqui.  Mr. Fradenburgthen described 
the process of repairing pipes.   
 
Councilmembers and Mr. Kulaga discussed concerns about private properties that have sewer pipe 
blockages that could potentially back up the Town’s system; the roach infestation problem; a recently 
discovered, improperly constructed, sewer line on private property; and, how system capacity is 
reduced when pipe blockages exist.   
 
Mr. Kulaga stated that the urgent needs should be addressed quickly.  The GIS inventory of system 
assets is helpful moving forward.  The WCS is 40 years old.  This five-year program will cost 
approximately $500,000 annually.  Total rehabilitation costs are estimated to be approximately $2.6 
million over the next five years.  There are funding options in upcoming agenda items.  The study did 

Page 11

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

5 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Online agendas and results 
available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

not include the follow up assessment after the first five years, or system maintenance, and bug spraying 
to prevent infestation.   
 
Currently, property owners pay $6 monthly in sewer assessment fees, which amounts to approximately 
$70,000 annually which is allocated to system repairs.  Staff will review the monthly sewer rates in the 
upcoming budget process.   When bug extermination occurs, property owners will be notified; and, 
property owners will be provided with methods in which to exterminate bugs.  The Town’s sewer system 
connects to Tempe’s main line, and is in good working order.  It is important to have a clean running 
system.  The Dibble assessment will serve as a planning document when considering capital projects.    
(related to G8 & G9) 
 
No action was taken on this agenda item.  
 
9.   PUBLIC HEARING:  Held a public hearing to obtain maximum feasible citizen involvement in the 
planning of specific Housing and Urban Development Community Block Grant projects for fiscal year 
2020-2021.  (related to G7 & G9) 
 
Motion by Councilmember Anita Cota to open the public hearing; second by Councilmember 
Osuna.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
Mayor Molina opened the public hearing.  No one spoke. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Anita Cota to close the public hearing; second by Councilmember 
Osuna.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
10. COMMUNITY BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (RESOLUTION NO. R2019.20):  Councilmembers  
directed the Town Manager to submit a wastewater system rehabilitation Project #1 consisting of 2,195 
linear feet pipe segments, 14 manhole structures, engineering design/construction document 
preparation, construction bid process oversight and construction management, quality control and 
inspection to Maricopa County for possible funding through the Community Block Grant Program for 
fiscal year 2020-2021.  (related to G8 & G9) 
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that the proposed resolution authorizes staff to submit a 
grant request to Maricopa County for Community Block Grant (CDBG) funding to address the need for 
urgent sewer pipe repairs.  Previous CDBG grant funds have been used for street repavement projects.  
Mr. Kulaga reviewed the locations of where the five segments of urgent sewer pipe repairs are needed.  
The requested grant funding amount totals $517,828.  The application submittal deadline is December 
6, 2019. 
 
In response to a question regarding funding options for urgent repairs and the timing of the CDBG 
funding, Mr. Kulaga stated that the urgent repairs will be funded out of the Sewer Fund reserve funds.  
The proposed CDBG funding request, if approved, would not be available for spending until 2021.  
Based on the Dibble assessment, the urgent pipe repair needs to occur sooner than 2021.   
 
Councilmembers and Mr. Kulaga discussed how some of the pipe repairs could coincide with the 
Avenida del Yaqui street improvement project.   
 
Motion by Councilmember Anita Cota to approve agenda item G10; second by Councilmember 
Sánchez.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
11.  APPROVAL OF CONTRACT: Councilmembers awarded a wastewater system pipe replacement 
contract (C2019-28) including design/construction document preparation, construction bid process 
oversight, construction management, quality control and inspection to the Town Engineer, Dibble 
Engineering in the amount of $34,264.00.    
 

Page 12

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

6 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Online agendas and results 
available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that the proposed contract is to address urgent repair needs 
to the Town-owned portion of the sewer line system.  Mr. Kulaga outlined the scope of work and stated 
that staff anticipates awarding a construction bid for completion of the urgent sewer line repairs in 
February.  Currently, the Sewer Fund balance is $750,000; and, the Dibble Engineering study costed 
approximately $140,000.   
 
In response to a question, Mr. Kulaga confirmed that one of the urgent repair locations is located in the 
alley between Magdalena and San Angelo, and not between Calle San Angelo and Calle Sonora, 5500 
east block.   
 
Motion by Councilmember Bravo to approve agenda item G11; second by Councilmember 
Sánchez.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
12.  APPROVAL OF PRIVATE PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION:   Councilmembers approved 
the staff recommendation to notify private property owners via letter of a damaged and/or obstructed 
lateral sewer line on their private property, observed while inspecting the Town lines.   
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that the Dibble sewer line study revealed that there are 24 
private properties that have roots in their lines that are impacting the pipe connection to the Town’s 
main sewer line.  Per Town Code, Section 14-3-1, “The Town shall not be responsible for the installation, 
maintenance or inspection of the consumer’s service line, piping or apparatus of for any defects therein.”  
Repairs on private property are at the expense of the property owner.   
 
Councilmembers discussed the proposed letter and voiced concern about how the Town intends to 
monitor if a licensed plumber is conducting the repairs on private property.  Mr. Kulaga stated that the 
Town will work with Dibble and the Town’s building inspector throughout this process.  Estimated cost 
of repairs could be approximately $3,500, per property; and, commercial properties could also be 
impacted. 
 
Councilmembers discussed potentially waiving permit fees for sewer line repairs.  Mr. Kulaga noted that 
no permit fees would apply.  Staff anticipates mailing the letters to private property owners within the 
next few weeks. 
 
Councilmembers discussed the possibility of property owners purchasing insurance to cover repairs; 
and, questioned if the repairs would be covered by insurance if there is a pre-existing condition.  The 
cost of repairs is unknown until each property has been assessed for damages.  Mr. Kulaga noted that 
staff will work through issues associated with unknown property ownership, or deceased property 
owners. 
 
There was no action taken on agenda item G12. 
 
13. FISCAL YEAR 2019/20 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT:   Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk 
presented a first quarter, fiscal year (FY) 2019/20 (July 2019 – September 2019) financial report that 
includes Town fund revenues, expenditures and balances.    
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that first quarter expenses are exceeding revenues by 
approximately $15,000.  Staff is using General Fund reserves to cover spending overages.    
 
Regarding the Solid Waste Fund, year to date expenditures exceeded revenues by approximately 
$25,000.  The anticipated revenue shortfall of $7,540 for the first quarter of 2020 will be paid out of the 
Solid Waste Fund reserve balance.  The current solid waste service provider contract expires March 1, 
2020.  Staff is in the process of evaluating three responses to a Solid Waste Request for Proposals.  
The intent is not to utilize fund reserve balances to cover expenditures in the Solid Waste Fund. 
 
There was no action taken on agenda item G13. 

 

Page 13

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

7 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Online agendas and results 
available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

14. FISCAL YEAR 2018/19 GENERAL FUND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT (RESOLUTION NO. 
R2019.21):   Councilmembers adopted RESOLUTION NO. R2019.21 authorizing a budget adjustment 
within the FY 2018/19 General Fund by transferring $25,500 from the Administration cost center to 
address cost overruns that were unforeseen at the time the FY 2018/19 budget was adopted.   Transfers 
include $10,000 to Town Manager; $1,000 to Community Development; $3,500 to Town Attorney; and, 
$11,000 to the Fire Department.   
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that, per state statute, the recommended budget transfers 
for Fiscal Year (FY) 2018/19 are to align various cost center funds with the budgeted amounts originally 
approved by the Town Council.   If approved, $25,000 will be transferred from the Administration budget 
to various cost centers.  This is an accounting formality. 

Motion by Councilmember Bravo to approve agenda item G14; second by Councilmember 
Sánchez.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
15. 2020 COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE:   Councilmembers reviewed the Town Council Regular 
Meeting Schedule for 2020 and noted that the Regular Council Meeting (meeting) on April 9, 2020, 
conflicts with Holy Week; the October 22, 2020, meeting conflicts with Spooktakular; the November 26, 
2020, meeting conflicts with Thanksgiving; and, the December 24, 2020, meeting conflicts with 
Christmas Eve.  
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that staff also anticipates scheduling two community budget 
forums during the upcoming budget cycle.  Mr. Kulaga then recapped the following 2020 meeting 
schedule, per the Council discussion: 

Month 2nd Thursday 
Date: 

4th Thursday 
Date: 

January 9 23 
February 13 27 

March 12 26 
April 9 - MEETING CANCELLED 23 
May 14 28 
June 11 25 
July 9 23 

August 13 27 
September 10 24 

October 8        22 - MEETING CANCELLED 
29 MEETING ADDED 

November 12 26 - MEETING CANCELLED 
24 (TUESDAY) MEETING ADDED 

December 10 24 - MEETING CANCELLED 
22 (TUESDAY) MEETING ADDED,  

IF NEEDED 
   
Councilmember Anita Cota left the meeting at 7:27 p.m.; and, returned at 7:29 p.m.. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Anita Cota to approve agenda item G15, [as recapped by the Town 
Manager / Clerk]; second by Councilmember Osuna.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
16.  SOLID WASTE, RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL SERVICES REPORT:   Jeff Kulaga, Town 
Manager / Clerk provided a status report on the request for proposals process for solid waste, recycling, 
and disposal services; and, planned efforts to solicit refuse service preferences from Guadalupe 
residents.  
 

Page 14

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

8 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Online agendas and results 
available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

Mr. Kulaga stated that staff received three responses to a Request for Proposals (RFP) from vendors 
to provide a solid waste, recycling, and disposal services for the Town.  The responses are currently 
being evaluated.  Vendors were asked to provide costs for a menu of services.  The next step is to seek 
community feedback on preferences for solid waste services and costs.     
 
Councilmember Anita Cota left the meeting at 7:27 p.m.; and, returned at 7:29 p.m.. 
 
Mr. Kulaga reviewed the various solid waste disposal options that were included in the RFP; and, 
discussed the survey questions that will be asked of community members to determine their service 
and cost preferences.   
 
Mr. Kulaga noted that the there is an upcoming community clean-up event scheduled for December 6 
& 7, 2019.  Of note, the cost of recycling will be a minimum of $1/month more because the market for 
recyclable materials has diminished, making it more expensive to dispose of recycled materials.   
 
Mr. Kulaga stated that the community survey will consist of 8 questions, in English and Spanish.  The 
survey will be available on-line, at the tree lighting event, at the Senior Center, and there will be hard 
copies available at Town Hall.  Mr. Kulaga requested the assistance of Councilmembers to encourage 
community members to participate in the survey.  The survey will include questions about recycling, 
monthly versus quarterly billing, frequency of use of the community roll off containers, and 
suggestions/comments.   
 
Mr. Kulaga stated that staff anticipates recommending the award of bid to a vendor at the Monday, 
December 9, 2019, Regular Council Meeting. 
 
Councilmembers discussed various locations where the surveys should be available to include the 
Community Action Program office; at an upcoming Frank School event; at a local restaurant; at an 
upcoming Pascua Yaqui Tribe senior luncheon; and, at church. 
 
No action was taken on agenda item G16. 
 
17. MARICOPA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGES DISTRICT EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT:  Councilmembers continued agenda item G17 to the December 9, 2019, Regular 
Council Meeting an agreement, in substantially the form of, with the Maricopa County Community 
Colleges District for the administration of tuition-free programs related to various career fields for 
qualified Town of Guadalupe residents.  The programs will be held from January through March, 2020. 
 
Mayor Molina thanked the Community Action Program staff for writing the grant request for the 
Educational Services Program. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Anita Cota to continue agenda item G17 to the December 9, 2019, 
Regular Council Meeting; second by Councilmember Bravo.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
H.  TOWN MANAGERS’ COMMENTS 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk 
o Saturday, November 30, 2019 – parade and Christmas tree lighting events.  Sponsor logos are 

included on event marketing materials.  To date, there are four parade float participants and 
three vendors for the tree lighting ceremony.  Event details and parade and vendor applications 
are available on-line and in Town Hall.  Encouraged Councilmembers to promote these events 
to the public. 

o Thanked the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Department, Fire Department, and Public Works staff 
for their coordination of the Veteran’s Day parade. 

o The Senior Center roof replacement project is nearing completion.   
o Mercado tenant rents are nearly 95% paid and up to date. 
o A Local First tenant has moved into the Mercado as a new tenant. 

 

Page 15

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

9 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Online agendas and results 
available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

I. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
Councilmember Bravo 
o Thanked audience members for attending the meeting. 

 
Councilmember Anita Cota 
o Thanked audience members for attending the meeting. 
o Saturday, November 16, 2019 – Pure Life Nutrition event. 
o Tuesday, November 19, 2019 – Frank Elementary School event. 
o Requested an increased police presence before and after school. 
o Concerned about speeding vehicles. 

 
Councilmember Joe Sánchez 
o Thanked audience members for attending the meeting. 
o Thanked Dibble Engineering for the comprehensive sewer line assessment report. 
o Concerned about lose dogs; animal control. 

 
Councilmember Elvira Osuna 
o Thanked audience members for attending the meeting. 
o Thanked first responders for their response to recent violence within the community. 
o Encouraged community members to call ‘911’ to report violent incidents. 
o Thanked Community Action Program and Senior Center staff members for their support of the 

elderly population. 

Councilmember Gloria Cota 
o Thanked audience members for attending the meeting. 

Mayor Molina 
o Thanked audience members for attending the meeting. 

 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Councilmember Anita Cota to adjourn the Regular Council Meeting; second by 
Councilmember Sánchez.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:44 p.m. 

 

 ____________________________ 
 Valerie Molina, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 
__________________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Town Clerk 
 
CERTIFICATION 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the November 
14, 2019, Town of Guadalupe, Town Council Regular Meeting.  I further certify the meeting was duly 
called and held, and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Town Clerk 
 

 

Page 16

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE – 2019 GRANTS REQUESTS UPDATE – DECEMBER, 2019 

Tribe / Community / 
Nation  

2019 
Proposed 
Amount 

Town Dept.  Purpose  Status  

Ak-Chin   $65K Fire  Type 1 Fire Truck Payment  Declined  
Ak-Chin $70K Fire  Firefighter Turnout Gear  Approved  
Ak-Chin  $49,120 Senior Center  Roof Replacement   Declined 
Ak-Chin  $50K Public Works  Utility Equipment: cherry picker, walker, sweeper, 

chipper 
Declined 

Ak-Chin Total $234,120    
     
Fort McDowell  $80K Senior Center  Senior Center Meal Program Declined 
Fort McDowell $40K Town  Town Building Security Cameras  Declined 
Fort McDowell $30K Community Dev. Renovate Old Town Hall  Declined 
Fort McDowell Total  $150K    
     
Gila River  $75K Fire  Command / Community Vehicle Declined 
Gila River $77K CAP Community Health and Public Safety  Declined 
Gila River $70K CAP Community Economic Assistance Programs Approved  
Gila River  $31K Community Dev. Cultural Heritage Events Programming  Approved  
Gila River Total  $253K    
     
Pascua Yaqui  $55K Public Safety  Event Staffing  Under Consideration  
Pascua Yaqui  $80K Senior Center Elder Activity Programming  Under Consideration  
Pascua Yaqui  $380K Public Works  Avenida del Yaqui Project Under Consideration 
Pascua Yaqui Total  $515K    
     
Tohono O’odham  $188K Senior Center Senior Center Renovation  Pending 
Tohono O’odham  $65K Fire  Fire Truck Payment  Pending 
Tohono O’odham  $60K Fire  Heart Monitors (2)  Pending 
Tohono O’odham $20K Fire Active Shooter Equip/Training  Pending 
Tohono O’odham Total   $333K    
Overall Total $1.485M   Granted: $171K 

 

 

 

Page 35



 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE – 2019 GRANTS REQUESTS UPDATE – DECEMBER, 2019 

Agency: 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total 
Maricopa County 
CDBG    

$305K $398K $569K $439K $1.71 M 

County Flood Control 
District 

 $246K* $227K*  $473K 

MAG Safe Routes to 
School  

 $22K   $22K 

MAG CMAQ   $3.5M*  $3.5M  
SAFER Grant   $544K*   $544K 
Firehouse Subs     $18K  $18K 
DBacks Give Back     $100K $100K 
Area Agency on Aging $140K $140K $140K $140K $560K 
County Human 
Services 

$35K  $35K $35K $35K $140K 

FHWA   $84K    
Overall Total $480K $1.47M $4.49M $714K $7.15M 

 

• Required local matching grant of Town funds 

Page 36



RESOLUTION NO. R2019.22 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, MARICOPA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA 
2018-01) BETWEEN THE AK-CHIN INDIAN COMMUNITY AND THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE FOR THE 
RECEIPT OF A PORTION OF ITS ANNUAL 12% MONIES FROM GAMING PROCEEDS. 

 
WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States has enacted into law the Indian Gaming Regulatory act, Public Law 100-

497, 25 U.S.C. §2701-2721 and 18 U.S.C. §1166-1168 (the "Act") which requires a tribal state compact in order to conduct 
Class 111gaming activities on the Indian lands of a tribe; and 

 
WHEREAS, Arizona Revised Statues (A.R.S.) § 11-951 through § 11-954, provide that public agencies may enter into 

intergovernmental agreements for the provision of services or for joint or cooperative action; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ak-Chin Indian Community has entered into a gaming contract with the State of Arizona and said compact 
requires that the Ak-Chin Indian Community contributions to Arizona communities for governmental services that benefit the 
general public such as public safety, mitigation of the impacts of gaming, etc., or promotion of commerce and economic 
development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, has a substantial population of Native Americans and other minorities and 

is in need of funding assistance to make a one-time purchase of 18 complete sets of firefighter protective clothing including: 
coats, pants, suspenders, gloves and hoods; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Ak-Chin Indian Community desires to convey a portion of its annual 12% monies to the Town of Guadalupe 

for the exclusive purpose of funding a one-time purchase of 18 complete sets of firefighter protective clothing including: coats, 
pants, suspenders, gloves and hoods as proposed in the June 27, 2019 Application, which the Town of Guadalupe wishes to 
accept; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Ak-Chin Indian Community has entered into an agreement with the Town of Guadalupe and is authorized 

to execute this agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Guadalupe has agreed to accept a portion of the annual 12% monies for the exclusive purpose of 
funding a one-time purchase of 18 complete sets of firefighter protective clothing including: coats, pants, suspenders, gloves and 
hoods; and, is authorized to execute this agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, as 

follows: 
 

The Mayor is authorized and directed to execute intergovernmental agreement (IGA C2019-31), Grant No: 19-2.01, between 
the Ak-Chin Indian Community and the Town of Guadalupe to accept the awarded 12% Contribution Grant in the amount of $70,000 
to fund a one-time purchase of 18 complete sets of firefighter protective clothing including: coats, pants, suspenders, gloves and 
hoods; and, sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this agreement. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, this    day 

of     , 2019. 
 
             
        Valerie Molina, Mayor  
 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

             
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk David E.  Ledyard, Town Attorney 

Page 37



Name of City/Town/CountyA{on-Profit: Town of Guadalupe, Arizona
:.{g0

MayoriSupervisor/Chairman/President: Mayor Valerie Molina Re*o 1$\$
Contact Person and Title: Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk \$Lsv
Applicant Address: 9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui

City: Guadalupe Zip Code: 85283

Applicant Mailing Address (if different): same

City: Zip Code:
PhoneNumber: 480-505-5376 Fax Number: 480-505-5368
E-mail Address : jkulaga@guadalupeaz. org

If Non-Prof,rt, Name of City'Town/County
With Which You Will Associate:
Contact Person:

CityiTown/County Mailing Address :

City: Zip Code:

Phone Number: Fax Number:

E-mail Address:

Ak-Chin Indian Community Grant Application Cover Sheet

Program or Project Name: Firefighter Tumout Gear

Purpose of Grant (brief statement): The Town of Guadalupe seeks to obtain funding from
the Ak-Chin Indian Community to fund a firefighter protective clothing replacement project.
The goal of this project is to ensure that all Town of Guadalupe Firefighters are equipped
with protective clothingthat meet NFPA (Irlational Fire Protection Agency) and OSHA
(Occupational Safety and Health Administration) standards by replacing wom-out and
antiquated equipment. The objective for this project is to obtain $70,000 for a one time
purchase of 20 complete sets of firefighter protective clothing (coat, pants, suspenders,
gloves and hood).
Beginning and Ending Date of
Program or Proiect: November 2019 - February 2020
Amount Requested $70,000 Total Cost: $70.000

Geographic Area Served: Town of Guadalupe. Arizona

By the execution of this Grant Application the undersigned agrees that the information contained
in this Application is true, to the best of the Applicant's knowledge. The Applicant shall notify
the Commumty if any information in this Application changes

Signature:
For the Applicant Date: July 2,2019

For the City/Town County: Town of Guadalupe, AZ. Date: Julv 2.2019

Exhibit A Page 38



AK.CHIN INDIAN COMMUNITY
2018 12% GRANT PROGRAM
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Submitted: July 2,2019

Narrative for:
Town of Guadalupeo Arizona - Firefighter Turnout Gear

1. Description of proposed program or project.
Thank you to the Ak-Chin Indian Community for considering this proposal from the Town of Guadalupe.

The Town of Guadalupe seeks to obtain funding from the Ak-Chin Indian Community to fund a
firefighter protective clothing replacement project. The goal of this project is to ensure that allTown of
Guadalupe Firefighters are equipped with protective clothing that meet NFPA (National Fire Protection
Agency) and OSHA (Occupational Safety and Health Administration) standards by replacing wom-out
and antiquated equipment.

NFPA Standard 1851 requires that fire departments remove any protective clothing fi'om service that is
older than 10 years from the manufacture date. This requirement is based on research that has shown that
even the best cared for gear breaks down and loses much of its protective qualities after about 10 years of
use. The high call volume of the Guadalupe Fire Department combined with the training hours required
for Guadalupe Firefighter's to meet regional and national standards puts a lot of stress on our firefighter's
protective clothing. While the department has been able to keep most of the department's protective
clothing in workable condition through a regular cleaning and maintenance schedule, much of the
department's gear is becoming worn-out and antiquated.

The Guadalupe Fire Department responded to an estimated3327 incidents in 2018, including 359 fire
calIs,2,575 EMS calls, and 57 hazardous materials calls. This high call volume highlights a critical need
for vital emergency medical equipment in our community. With a first-due area of 27,000 people and, a
first-alarm area of 109,000 people that will directly benefit from this project.

Currently less than 50% of Guadalupe Firefighters are equipped with firefighting protective clothing that
is less than 10 years old, and most of those are equipped with firefighting protective clothing that is
between 5 and 10 years old. It is the Town of Guadalupe Fire Department's goal to replace the oldest or
most worn-out sets of firefighter protective clothing and equip 100% of the Town of Guadalupe
Firefi ghters with current protective clothing.

Over the past 10 years the Guadalupe Fire Department has experience d a 47% increase in call volume
within their Town boundaries, this increase is partially due to an increase in development with 77 new
building permits issued over the past 10 years for everything from single family residence to commercial
and industrial structures. The Guadalupe Fire Department is on pace to have another l0o/o inqease in call
volume within their Town boundaries.

The Town of Guadalupe Town Council unanimously supported this grant request through Resolution
R201 9.01 on June 27 , 2019 and by doing so directed town staff to submit an application. The Resolution
is attached.

Page 39



2. Identify the target population that will be served by the project.

Although we primarily respond to the Town of Guadalupe (populati on 6,336), we also assist a host of
other communities in Maricopa and Pinal counties as parl of the Phoenix Regional Automatic Aid
System, including: Tempe, Phoenix, Chandler, Mesa, Gilbert, Avondale, Apache Junction, Buckeye,
Daisy Mountain, El Mirage, Glendale, Goodyear, Maricopa, Paradise Valley, Peoria, Scottsdale, Sun
City, Sun City West, Surprise, and Tolleson. Thus, our target population is varied and far-reaching.

Because of the Automatic Aid System, Guadalupe Fire Department has a first-due atea of 27,000 people
and a first-alarm area of 109,000 people.

3. Describe the Project goals and objectives, and your plan to meef them.

The objective for this project is to obtain $70,000 to purchase 20 complete sets of firefighter protective
clothing (coat, pants, suspenders, gloves and hood).

4. Provide a timetable for implementation of the Project.

This would be a one-time purchase of protective clothing; once funding is received firefighters will be
measured for turnouts and the clothing will be ordered within two weeks of receiving the-funds.

B. Resources:
1. Identify current funding sources for the Project and characterize each funding:
None

2. Identify other organizations or partners that are participating in or contributing to the Project, but
which are not funding sources, and describe their roles or contributions.

There are currently no other partners for this project.

3. Define the Project as a new or continuing project. If the Project is awarded a grant, how would the
Project continue after its grant funding is expended? If the Grant from the Community will replace
other funding lost due to the economy, how will the Project be continued after the grant from the
Community is exhausted?

This is a new one-time-purchase project, the ongoing costs of cleaning and maintenance pf protective
clothing are provided for in the Town's Budget.

4. If you have requested any other funding from another Arizona tribe, please list:
a. Unsuccessful requests made within the last eighteen (18) months, including tribe to which the

request was made and the project for which a grant was requested.

Please refer to attached Grant summary table, dated March 4,2019

b. Funded requests made in the last five (5) years, including the name of the tribe that awarded
the funding, the project for which the funding was awarded, and the amount of the funding received.

o 2017 Ak Chin Indian Community Fire Truck payment - $112,000
o 2018 Ak chin Indian community Head start senior center - $90,000
o 2018 Tohono O'odham Nation Fire Truck payment - $62,500
o 2018 Pascua Yaqui Tribe: $127,000 for Public Works vehicles, Community Assistance Program

and Law Enforcement Event Staffins

Page 40



C. Reports. How will you account for and manage the funding if you are selected? Describe your plan
to document Project progress and results. Interim and final reports wilt be required for eaci g.unt
awarded.
Quarterly reports and final reports shall be prepared and all information will be readily available upon requesr.

D. Budget. Provide a detailed budget of how the funding witl be used. Provide an estimated timeline for
when funds will be expended.

The total budget for this project is $70,000 for purchase of protective clothing; once funding is received \
the clothing will be ordered within two weeks of receiving the funds. Items would be placed in service as
soon as they are received as Guadalupe Firefighters are already trained in the use of this equipment.

E. Additional information. Please provide any additional information about the Project or your
organization you would like to share.

As mentioned, the Guadalupe Town Council Resolution is attached.

Page 41



1

5
(E

rtt

qi
t,
(u
o

L

B

lJ'y z

(!
oF
o€{r} z z o,{r|. z oz avI

L

=v
oo
Ij\

o
L

3

rn
t{{r z

-t'
L

3
N
co
1J"

ao

o

N
F{ z z

o
L

3

c.i

4J\

G
o
v
ljt
Fi(l'
,(r1

o
tft
<f
N
{/t

C!.

q)

=CJz z 0)
n
qJ z

q
{J

q
o z o rh

CJo

L

L=

{: 0Jttt tr,

?.+ii=
;rro\\

u*
Li.96
qJo
ttl E

o
E

(J

L
F

.!
L
r{
O

F
ftr

Pq
e

F

b!
P

L

tt'l

F

'T'

3
F

GI

L

E-

t
T

* Lv\ I

< t_!l

o

L

#:
-(J

!uP

(J

L

=
F

(u

L

F

.g

E

I a.t
F-

--c
(J>

*
#(/,

UJ

(E
(U
ln
#

L

F
L

p

*
I

'-
OJ

'oH

;a-
lIJ>r

EP(o .gr

u) u1

#

(J

F
L

u

F

{J
O

3
F.

L
(u

L

Lt7
L

II

q

=.9
-

F

)ar

trJ
c> O

L

ir-
L
r

q

L

=
q,,
L

iI

Po
(n

OJ
L

i.r

6
-:.L

=
=

L

I

I
4J\ ro

<.r,

ut
<f
F{(t\

:<

r{
<J\

:l
an
<J\

:zo
<t
{r}

(o
4J)

c{
.1r}

o
00
1t,

}Z

oo
.{.r}

(o
{/} rn

Ir.
1/)

r.r)
<t'r

rft(ll
N{t}

LN
ff)
ttl

t/)
f!
"v't

v
LN

c.i

1J\.

rat
N
N
F{
lrl

rjl
Nrjl
rt\

E

g.)

'-
F-

(J U

(!
0
q

(J
I

=

t
L

;
=o

tr
u

G
fl

(u

3
oo
L)

=
o

o

an

L
OJ

d.

-g

|g

o

0,

E
o
(9

U (J
o

t
o

ct
(E

(o
5
IA
(!
a-

a1

F-

c

F

E

F

E(!
-c
TI
o
OG
PF
o
o

{o

o

(o

0,

o

Page 42



RESOLUTTON NO. R2019.01

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, AUTHOR]ZING
AN APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE AK.CHIN INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR PUBLIC SAFETY
AND SENIOR CENTER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States has enacted into law the Indian Gaming Regulatory act, Public Larnr

100-497, 25 U,S.C. 52701-2721 and 1B U.S.C. $1 166-1 168 (the "Act") which requires a hibal state compact in order to
conduct Class 111 gaming activities on the lndian lands of a tribe; and

WHEREAS, the Ak-Chin lndian Community has entered into a gaming contract with the State of Arizona and said
compact requires that ihe Ak-Chin Indian Community contributes to Arizona communities for governmental services that
benefit the general public such as public safety, mitigation of the impacts of gaming, etc., or promotion of commerce and
economic development; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, has a substantial population of Native Americans and other minorities
and iS in need of financial assistance to replace aging firefighter turnout gear, to fund a Type 1 Fire Truck payment; to replacer
the Head Start i Senior Center roof; and to purchase public works utility trucks to replace aging trucks.

WHEREAS, the following needs have been identified:

Type 1 Fire Truck payment:

Firefi ghter Turnout Gear:

Head Start / Senior Center Roof Replacement:

Public Works Utility Equipment:

$65,000

$70,000

$49,120

$50,000

WHEREAS, these needs have been identified as most pressing; and, that any grant monies received from the Ak-Chin
Indian Community would be restricted to these needs; and

WHEREAS, it would be appropriate for Town staff to submit a grant funding request to the Ak-Chin Indian Community
in the sum of $234,120 for the aforementioned neeos.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA AS
FOLLOWST

Town staff is directed to submit an applicaiion for grant funds inthe sum of $234,120 tothe Ak-Chin Indian
Community; and, that said funds shallbe restricted to the needs setforth inthis resolution.

DATED, this 27th day of June, 2019.

'-{lu}ir bw**(*
Valerie Molina, Mayor

APPROVEDASTOFORM:ATTEST:

David Ledyard, Town Attorney

Page 43



Page 1 of 8 
 

Grant No: 19-2.01 
C2019-31 

Intergovernmental Agreement 
Between 

Ak-Chin Indian Community 
and 

Town of Guadalupe 
 
 This Intergovernmental Agreement ("Agreement”) is entered into by and between 
the Ak-Chin Indian Community (“Community”), a federally recognized Indian tribe having 
its principal place of business at 42507 W. Peters and Nall Road, Maricopa, Arizona 
85138, and the Town of Guadalupe (“Grantee"), a town having its principal place of 
business at 9241 S. Avenida Del Yaqui, Guadalupe, Arizona 85283. 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IV, Section (b) of the Constitution of the Ak-Chin Indian 

Community, the Community Council is authorized to “negotiate and enter into 
contracts with Federal, state, local and tribal governments, and with individuals, 
associations, corporations, enterprises or organizations”; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the authorities granted to cities incorporated pursuant to Title 9 

of the Arizona Revised Statutes, the Grantee is authorized to enter into 
agreements, such as this Agreement, and accept grant funding thereunder; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12 of the Tribal/State Gaming Compact between the 

Community and the State of Arizona (“Compact”), in exchange for substantial 
exclusivity covenants by the State, the Community did agree to contribute a portion 
of its annual gaming revenues for regulatory costs and other public benefits; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Compact Section 12(d), instead of making a deposit to the State, 

the Community may award up to 12% of its annual contribution (“12% 
Contribution”) directly to cities, towns, or counties of the Community’s choosing, 
for services that benefit the general public; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Grantee submitted an application (“Application”) to the Community for a 

grant (“Grant”) from the 12% Contribution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Community desires to award a 12% Contribution Grant to the Grantee 

for the exclusive purpose of the project proposed in the Application (“Project”), 
which the Grantee wishes to accept. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained 

herein, the Community hereby agrees to make, and the Grantee agrees to accept, 
a Grant subject to the following terms and conditions: 

 

Page 44



Page 2 of 8 
 

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
1.1   Contents of Agreement.  The agreement between the parties will consist of this 
Agreement and the Grantee’s Application (“Application,” as defined further in Section 1.2), 
which (a) was signed by the Grantee on July 2, 2019, and (b) seeks funding for the Project 
(“Project” is defined below in Section 1.2), that the Grantee submitted to the Community 
and which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A.”   
 
1.2 General Definitions.  Unless otherwise provided herein, when used in this 
Agreement: 
 

(a) "Application" means the application submitted by the Grantee, which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A” and which includes 
the following: (1) the Ak-Chin Indian Community Grant Cover Sheet, (2) the 
narrative submitted by the Grantee, (3) any and all attachments to the 
Application, and (4) any and all other documents submitted to the 
Community by the Grantee related to the Grantee’s Application and 
submitted in consideration for receiving a Grant. 

 
 (b) "Grant" means funding awarded by the Community as a part of the 

Community’s 12% Contribution. 
 
 (c) "Project" means the “Firefighter Turnout Gear” program or project described 

by the Grantee in its Application. 
 

ARTICLE II - TERM 
 
2.1 The term of this Agreement (“Term”) will commence upon the effective date 
(“Effective Date”) which shall be the later of either 1) the date this Agreement is fully 
executed by all parties or January 1, 2020. 
 
2.2 Unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the Article VIII below or extended 
upon the approval of the Community, which such approval may be given in the form of a 
Community Resolution, without requiring further written amendment of this Agreement, 
the term of this Agreement will expire on occurrence of the first of either: (a) one (1) 
calendar year from the Effective Date; or (b) the date upon which (i) the Project proposed 
in the Application (which is more fully described in Article III of this Agreement) is 
completed and (ii) the Community receives the Grantee’s final report, as described more 
fully in Article X below. 
 

ARTICLE III - SCOPE 
 
 The Grantee has overall responsibility for the timely completion of the Project 
proposed in the Application in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement.  The Grantee agrees and shall use the Grant exclusively for the Project as 
detailed in the Application.  

Page 45



Page 3 of 8 
 

 
ARTICLE IV - AMOUNT AND AUTHORIZED USES OF GRANT FUNDS 

 
4.1 In consideration of the various obligations undertaken by the Grantee pursuant to 
this Agreement, as represented by the Grantee in the Application proposing the Project, 
the Community agrees, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, to provide 
the Grantee with a Grant in the amount of SEVENTY THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($70,000.00). 
 
4.2 The Grantee will use the Grant exclusively to support the Project represented in 
the Application, including costs attributable to and arising from providing those services 
and activities that are part of the Project. 
 
4.3 The Grant made under this Agreement has been awarded in reliance upon the 
Grantee’s proposal in the Application.  Any material change in the term or scope of the 
Project must have the prior written approval of the Community, which may be given in the 
form of a Community Resolution, without requiring further written amendment of this 
Agreement. 
 
4.4 The Community reserves the right to terminate this Agreement, pursuant to Article 
VIII, if the Grantee fails to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement or if the Project 
changes in a material way.  
 
4.5 Title to any property, both real and personal, purchased with this Grant shall be 
taken in the name of the Grantee; provided that, if the Grantee fails to fulfill its obligations 
under this Agreement during the Term of the Agreement, the property shall be returned 
to the Community for contribution to another eligible recipient.  At the conclusion of the 
Term, the Community will not retain any rights or interests in any property purchased with 
this Grant. 
 
4.6  Unless otherwise stipulated in writing, this Grant is made with the understanding 
that Community has no obligation to provide the Grantee with any other funding or support 
except the amount granted in Article IV, Section 4.1 herein. 
 

ARTICLE V - DISBURSEMENT OF GRANT 
 
 Upon the Community’s receipt of a fully executed copy of this Agreement, and a 
copy of the Grantee’s W-9, the Community will arrange to issue to the Grantee Grant 
funding in the amount set forth in Article IV, Section 4.1.  Unless otherwise requested by 
the Grantee, the Grant funding will be sent via FedEx or other express mail service to the 
Grantee at the address provided in Article XI, Section 11.2, below.   
 
ARTICLE VI - REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND SPECIFIC OBLIGATIONS 
 
6.1 By executing this Agreement, the Grantee represents and warrants that: 
 

Page 46



Page 4 of 8 
 

(a) All resolutions or other formalities necessary to authorize the execution and 
delivery of this Agreement by the person executing this Agreement on behalf of 
the Grantee have been fully adopted, passed, or enacted by the Grantee’s 
governing body; 
 
(b) This Agreement is valid and legally binding upon the Grantee and has been 
executed and delivered by the Grantee in such manner and form as to comply with 
all laws, regulations, and policies applicable to the Grantee. 
 
(c) The representations, statements, and other matters contained in the 
Application are true and complete and not misleading in any respect.  The Grantee 
is aware of no change that would require any modification to the approved 
Application as of the date of execution of this Agreement.   
 

6.2 The Grantee acknowledges that nothing contained in this Agreement, nor any act 
of the Community or the Grantee, will be deemed or construed to create any principal and 
agency, partnership, joint venture, or other similar association or relationship between the 
Community and the Grantee. 
 

ARTICLE VII - DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 
 
7.1 The Grantee will be considered in default if the Grantee: (a) uses Grant funds for 
any purpose other than activities related to the Project, or (b) fails to perform its 
obligations agreed to in this Agreement. 
 
7.2 If the Community has reason to believe that the Grantee has defaulted on any 
obligations under this Agreement, the Community will issue a Notice of Default (“Default 
Notice”).  No later than thirty (30) days after receipt of the Default Notice, the Grantee 
shall deliver all reports, records, and accountings sufficiently necessary to provide the 
Community with the current status of the Project, including but not limited to information 
documenting the Grantee’s use of the grant funding.   
 
7.3 Upon the occurrence of any default, the Community may take appropriate action 
to recapture the Grant funding.  For purposes of this Section, " appropriate action" means 
any remedial action legally available, including, without limitation, (a) terminating the 
Agreement, (b) suits for declaratory judgment, specific performance, or temporary or 
permanent injunctions, and (c) and any other available remedy.  
 
7.4 The Community may terminate this Agreement if the Community determines that 
the Grantee has defaulted on its obligations under this Agreement.  Prior to terminating 
the Agreement, the Community will provide written Notice of Default to the Grantee and 
the Grantee has thirty (30) calendar days to either: (a) commence performing under the 
Agreement, which must be proven through documentation showing progress; or (b) 
provide the Community with reports and other evidence refuting the allegation of default.  
If the Grantee does not provide evidence of progress to the Community’s satisfaction, the 
Community may move forward with terminating this Agreement.  If this Agreement is 

Page 47



Page 5 of 8 
 

terminated by the Community, the Grantee shall return to the Community all Grant funding 
and/or any property purchased with the Grant funding.   
 
7.5 The Ak-Chin Indian Community Courts shall have jurisdiction over disputes arising 
under this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII - TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
8.1 The Grantee may terminate this Agreement at any time during the Term by 
providing thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice to the Community and returning ALL 
Grant funding to the Community. 
 
8.2  The Community may terminate this Agreement if the Community determines that 
the Grantee has defaulted on its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
8.3 The Community’s rights and remedies will survive termination of the Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE IX - CERTIFICATIONS BY GRANTEE 
 
9.1 In signing this Agreement, the Grantee certifies that: 
 

(a)  All of the representations and warranties of the Grantee as set forth in this 
Agreement and the Application are valid and true; and 
 
(b) The Grant funds awarded will be used for costs actually incurred or to be 
incurred in fulfillment of the obligations agreed to in this Agreement; and 
 
(c) The payment requested does not duplicate a payment or reimbursement of 
costs and services received from any other source. 

 
ARTICLE X - REPORTS 

 
10.1 During the term of this Agreement, the Grantee must submit progress reports that 
summarize both expenditures made and provide updates on the general status of the 
Project no later than thirty (30) days after:  
 

(a) The first six (6) months of the Term; and 
 
(b) Completion of the Project or end of the Agreement Term, whichever occurs 

first.  If a Grant was awarded to make a purchase, the date of delivery of all 
items shall be deemed completion of the Project. 

 
10.2 Upon request by the Community, the Grantee shall provide promptly such 
additional information, reports, and documents as the Community may request. 
 

Page 48



Page 6 of 8 
 

ARTICLE XI - MISCELLANEOUS 
 
11.1 All amendments, notices, requests, and disclosures of any kind made pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be in writing. 
 
11.2 Any communication will be deemed effective as of the date such communication 
is received by the addressee, return receipt requested, delivered to the following primary 
address listed for each party: 

 
11.3 This Agreement, including any right, benefit, or obligation arising hereunder, may 
not be transferred or assigned without the prior written approval of the Community. 
 
11.4 No delay or omission of the Community in exercising any right or remedy available 
under this Agreement will impair any such right or remedy, or constitute a waiver of any 
default, or an acquiescence thereto. 
 
11.5 The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement will not affect the validity of the 
remaining provisions hereof. 
 
11.6 This Agreement, and any attachments or incorporated documents, constitutes the 
entire agreement between the Community and the Grantee, and supersedes all prior oral 
and written agreements between the parties hereto with respect to this Grant.  
Notwithstanding the provisions of Article I, Section 1.1 of this Agreement, in the event of 
any inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and anything contained in 
the Exhibit A, the provisions of this Agreement will prevail. 

If to the Community: 
 
PRIMARY ADDRESS 
 
 
 
 
CC: 

 
 
Ak-Chin Indian Community 
c/o Council Executive Secretary 
42507 W. Peters and Nall Rd. 
Maricopa, AZ 85138 
 
Strickland & Strickland, P.C. 
Ak-Chin Indian Community General Counsel 
4400 E. Broadway, Suite 700 
Tucson, Arizona 85711 

If to the Grantee: 
 
PRIMARY ADDRESS 
 
 
 
 
CC: 

 
 
Town of Guadalupe 
c/o Mayor Valerie Molina 
9241 S. Avenida Del Yaqui 
Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
 
Guadalupe Fire Chief 
9241 S. Avenida Del Yaqui 
Guadalupe, AZ 85283 

Page 49



Page 7 of 8 
 

 
11.7 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts.  All such 
counterparts will be deemed to be originals and together will constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 
 
11.8 Upon the Community’s prior written approval, the Grantee is permitted to issue 
press releases and host other publicity events highlighting the Grant from the Community. 
 
11.9 The Community reserves and has the exclusive right to waive any requirement or 
provision under this Agreement; provided that, no act, by or on behalf of the Community, 
will be deemed or construed to be a waiver of any such requirement or provision, unless 
the same be in writing expressly stated to constitute such waiver. 
 
11.10 Notwithstanding any other provision herein to the contrary, nothing in this 
Agreement shall be deemed a waiver of the Community’s sovereign immunity.  The 
Grantee agrees to indemnify the Community with respect to any claims arising from the 
Project funded by the Grant. 
 

[THIS SPACE BLANK INTENTIONALLY] 
 
  

Page 50



Page 8 of 8 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed by their respective, duly authorized representatives, as of the day and year 
written below. 
 
COMMUNITY 
AK-CHIN INDIAN COMMUNITY 
 
 
______________________  ___/___/___ 
Robert Miguel 
Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Victoria A. Smith 
Council Executive Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Amy Courson 
Strickland & Strickland, P.C. 
General Counsel to the  
Ak-Chin Indian Community 

GRANTEE: 
TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
 
 
______________________  12/09/2019 
Valerie Molina 
Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
_____________________________ 
Jeff Kaluga 
Town Manager / Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
_____________________________ 
David E. Ledyard 
Town Attorney 
 

 

Page 51



Traffic Safety Analysis and Suggestions

December 9, 2019 

Las Flores de Guadalupe 
Request for speed humps 

Page 52



Study area: 
Page 53



Suggestions: 
Location: Suggestion:

A. Replace existing 20 speed limit sign with 25 mph speed limit sign.

B. Install pedestrian warning sign on Calle Senu approximately 100 feet east of Avenida del Yaqui.

C. Relocate speed hump to Calle Senu: approximately 215 feet west of the Calle Senu and Calle Naki

intersection.

D. Install new speed hump on Calle Senu: approximately 190 feet east of the Calle Senu and Calle Naki

intersection.

E. Calle Tomi: approximately 65 feet south of the south Calle Tomi and Calle Fortunato Serrano intersection

F. Relocate speed hump to Calle Tomi: approximately 95 feet north of the north Calle Tomi and Calle

Fortunato Serrano intersection

G. Remove existing sign

H. Remove existing sign and replace with pedestrian sign

I: Calle Tomi south of Calle Guadalupe

Page 54



A: Calle Vahi east of Avenida del Yaqui 

remove and replace speed limit sign  

Page 55



B:   Calle Senu eastbound east 
of Avenida del Yaqui

Install new pedestrian sign  

Page 56



C: Calle Senu between Avenida del 
Yaqui and Calle Naiki

relocate speed hump 

Page 57



D: Calle Senu at Senior 
Housing  

Install new speed hump

Page 58



E: Calle Tomi north of 
Calle Senu

relocate speed hump 
Existing street 

Speed bump photo 

Page 59



F: Calle Tomi north of 
Calle F. Serrano 

relocate speed hump 

Page 60



G: Calle Tomi north of Calle 
Senu

remove existing sign 

Page 61



H: Calle Tomi south of 
Calle F. Serrano 

remove and replace 
existing sign 

Page 62



I: Calle Tomi south of 
Calle Guadalupe 

remove and replace 
existing sign  

Page 63



Suggestions: 
Location: Suggestions:

A. Calle Vahi: replace existing 20 speed limit sign with 25 mph speed limit sign.

B. Calle Senu: install pedestrian warning sign on Calle Senu approximately 100 feet east of Avenida

del Yaqui.

C. Calle Senu: relocate speed hump approximately 215 feet west of the Calle Senu and Calle Naki

intersection.

D. Calle Senu: install new speed hump approximately 190 feet east of the Calle Senu and Calle Naki

intersection.

E. Calle Tomi: approximately 65 feet south of the south Calle Tomi and Calle Fortunato Serrano

intersection

F. Calle Tomi: relocate speed hump approximately 95 feet north of the north Calle Tomi and Calle

Fortunato Serrano intersection

G. Calle Tomi: north of Calle Senu: remove existing sign

H. Calle Tomi: south of Calle F. Serrano: remove existing sign and replace with pedestrian sign

I: Calle Tomi: south of Calle Guadalupe: remove and replace sign with speed limit sign

Page 64



Thank you 
Questions? 

Las Flores de Guadalupe 
Request for speed humps 

Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



ORDINANCE NO. O2019.04 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, AMENDING CHAPTER 10, 
HEALTH AND SANITATION, ARTICLE 10-1, GARBAGE AND TRASH COLLECTION, OF THE 
TOWN OF GUADALUPE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY ADDING LANGUAGE RELATING TO REAL 
PROPERTY OWNER OR OCCUPANT REQUIREMENTS FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 
SERVICES. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA: 

 
Section 10-2-5:  Owner or Occupant Requirements 
A. All owners, or residents if the property is not owner occupied, of real property within the Town limits shall 

obtain solid waste collection services in accordance with the requirements of Articles 10-1 through 10-4 from a provider 
licensed by the Town pursuant to Articles 10-1 through 10-4. 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, this ____ day of 
_______________, 2019. 
 
 
 _____________________________________ 
 Valerie Molina, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
David E. Ledyard, Town Attorney 
 

Page 76



Town of Guadalupe          

 Solid Waste Services Financial Status Report 

December 3, 2019  

The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the financial status of the Town’s solid waste fund.  The solid waste fund accounts 
for all revenues and expenditures related to residential and Town solid waste and recycling collection and disposal services.    

Presently, through September 2019, FY2019/20 solid waste expenses are exceeding solid waste revenues.  As a result, prior year 
earnings of $7,540 have been used to balance this year’s budget.   As approved in the FY2019/20 Town Budget, it is forecasted that 
expenses will exceed revenues by $54,874.  As a result, this same amount of fund balance will be used to balance the budget.   
Consequently, the end of year, fund balance would be reduced from $182,830 to $127,956. 

At the April 25, 2019. Town Council Regular meeting:  the solid waste fund was summarized as follows:  

 
 

Additionally, a review of the solid waste fund from 2005 to 2019 offers the following:  

 

  

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Operating Revenues $210,084 $196,901 $227,479 $295,156 $334,110 $338,264 $331,961 $341,583 $321,231 $323,239 $325,561 $325,300 $324,625 $327,891 $328,299 $323,003
Operating Expenses 192,667 199,212 235,125 299,835 314,377 301,096 284,892 289,982 281,624 293,633 305,289 312,564 316,493 326,756 353,737 377,877

17,417 -2,311 -7,646 -4,679 19,733 37,168 47,069 51,601 39,607 29,606 20,272 12,736 8,132 1,135 -25,438 -54,874
Fund Balance (net assets) $24,076 $21,765 $14,119 $9,440 $29,173 $66,341 $113,410 $165,011 $204,618 $234,224 $254,496 $267,232 $275,364 $276,499 $251,061 $127,956

Town of Guadalupe Solid Waste Fund Balance 
Fiscal Years 2005 Thru Projected Year to Date 2020

Page 77



 
 

In September 2008, Town Council increased fees from $19.25 per month to $20.75 per month to address similar conditions of expenses 
exceeding revenues.   This 7.8% increase allowed revenues to exceed expenses for 11 years, until 2019.   Solid waste service costs 
increased over this period while revenues and the $20.75 fee remained constant.    

As a result, the Request for Proposals to solicit current services and associated fees and costs was pursued.   

For comparison purposes, other valley municipalities recently increased rates as shown:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

SOLID WASTE UTILITY RATE COMPARISONS 
 

 
MUNICIPALITY 

 
DATE OF FEE/RATE CHANGE 

 
PERCENTAGE 

INCREASE 
Chandler October, 2017 6% 
Gilbert November, 2018 19% 

Glendale January, 2019 14.4% 
Mesa July, 2018 2% 
Peoria July, 2019 6% 

Scottsdale July, 2019 8.7% 
Tempe January 2019 2% 

Page 78



City of Tempe proposed rates:  

 

Page 79



Town of Guadalupe 

SOLID WASTE FINANCIAL REPORT

Presented to Town Council 
December 9, 2019  

Page 80



SOLID WASTE  HISTORIC  RATES    
YEAR WM Rate User Fee TOG Return WM RO Fund Balance  

2007/2008 $14.58 $19.25 $4.67 $83.00  
2008/2009 $15.31 $20.75 $5.62 $87.00 $29,173 
2019/2020 $18.16 $20.75 $2.59 $100.81 $193,653 

 

Solid Waste Fund Recommendation:

 Current contract expires March 1, 2020
 Current contract initiated on November 14, 2002
 Current contract received 4 amendments:  Aug. 2005; Mar 2007, Mar 2010; May 2014
 Current WM FY 2019/2020 Total CPI Increase 3.40% + 3.46% = 6.86%
 Pursue RFP in fall
 Hold on user fee increase until next year
 Recommend user fee based on new contract
 Incorporate annual pothole and street repair amount into fund

From April, 25 2019 – Proposed budget presentation 
SOLID WASTE FUND DISCUSSION

Page 81



Historic Solid Waste Fund Balance 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
 Revenues $210,084 $196,901 $227,479 $295,156 $334,110 $338,264 $331,961 $341,583 $321,231 $323,239 $325,561 $325,300 $324,625 $327,891 $328,299 $323,003
 Expenses 192,667 199,212 235,125 299,835 314,377 301,096 284,892 289,982 281,624 293,633 305,289 312,564 316,493 326,756 353,737 377,877

17,417 -2,311 -7,646 -4,679 19,733 37,168 47,069 51,601 39,607 29,606 20,272 12,736 8,132 1,135 -25,438 -54,874
Fund Balance (  $24,076 $21,765 $14,119 $9,440 $29,173 $66,341 $113,410 $165,011 $204,618 $234,224 $254,496 $267,232 $275,364 $276,499 $251,061 $127,956

Town of Guadalupe Solid Waste Fund Balance 
Fiscal Years 2005 Thru Projected Year to Date 2020

Page 82



FY2019/20 Solid Waste Fund Balance 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE SOLID 
WASTE FUND Audited Audited

Current 
2019 

Unaudited
Current 
Month

Current 
2020

Current % 
S/B 25%  Adopted 

FY17 FY18 YTD September YTD YTD FY20
Revenues Refuse Fees 322,925 326,991       327,250 55,279 83,004 26% 323,003       

Truck Reservations 1,700 900                1,050 0 200 0% -                     
Prior Year Retained Earnings Used 0 0 25,437 0 7,540 14% 54,874          
TOTAL SOLID WASTE REVENUES 324,625       327,891       353,737 55,279 90,744 24% 377,877       

Audited Audited

Current 
2019 

Unaudited
Current 
Month

Current 
2020

Current % 
S/B 25%  Adopted 

Expenditures FY17 FY18 YTD September YTD YTD FY20
Clean Up Days 1,556 308                755 5 15 0% 15,000
Auditing/Insurance 2,363 2,363            1,165 197 591 23% 2,560
Residential Pick Up Charges 258,105 258,222       275,961 23,774 71,321 26% 272,748
Roll Off Fees 54,472 65,862          75,855 11,735 18,818 21% 87,569
TOTAL SOLID WASTE EXPENSES 316,495 326,755 353,737 35,711 90,744 24% 377,877

TOTAL SOLID WASTE REVENUES 324,625       327,891       328,300       55,279          83,204          323,003       
TOTAL SOLID WASTE EXPENSES (316,495)     (326,755)      (353,737)      (35,711)        (90,744)        (377,877)      
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 8,130            1,136            (25,437)        19,568          (7,540)          (54,874)        

Beginning Retained Earnings 267,233 275,363 276,499 251,062 251,062 182,830
Prior Year Retained Earnings (Used) 0 0 (25,437) 0 7,540 (54,874)
Total Net Position, End of Year 275,363 276,499 251,062 270,630 243,522 127,956

Page 83



Solid Waste Utility Rate Comparison 

SOLID WASTE UTILITY RATE COMPARISONS

MUNICIPALITY DATE OF FEE/RATE 
CHANGE

PERCENTAGE 
INCREASE

Chandler October, 2017 6%
Gilbert November, 2018 19%

Glendale January, 2019 14.4%
Mesa July, 2018 2%
Peoria July, 2019 6%

Scottsdale July, 2019 8.7%
Tempe January 2019 2%

Page 84



Solid Waste Utility Rate Comparison 
Page 85



City of Tempe proposed rate adjustments 
Page 86



Town of Guadalupe Recycling Trends 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
MSW 121.4 116.1 150.3 116.9 130.8 128.4 115.9 140.7 111.8 126.2 146.5 1405.1

Recycle 32.3 25.6 26.9 24.9 28.3 27.4 31.9 27.5 25.2 34.4 27.7 312.1
Contamination 13.3 10.6 9.5 8.8 10.0 9.6 11.2 9.7 8.9 12.1 9.8 113.4

Recycling Actual 19.0 15.0 17.4 16.2 18.3 17.8 20.7 17.8 16.3 22.3 17.9 198.7
*Updated: average contamination since 1/2017 is 35.2%

Total Combined 153.7 141.7 177.2 141.9 159.1 155.8 147.8 168.2 137.0 160.5 174.2 1717.2
Diversion  % 12.3% 10.6% 9.8% 11.4% 11.5% 11.4% 14.0% 10.6% 11.9% 13.9% 10.3% 11.6%

2018 Town of Guadalupe Diversion Report

Diversion Tons

Page 87



Town of Guadalupe 
SOLID WASTE FINANCIAL REPORT

Thank you 
Questions? 

Page 88



Solid Waste Service Recommendations: 

Recommendation:
It is recommended that Right Away Disposal (RAD) be awarded a 10-year contract for residential Solid
Waste and Recycling Services with the Town of Guadalupe commencing on March 1, 2020.

Due to the unique circumstances, staff is asking Council to approve a contract with RAD in substantial
form. The complete and final contract would then be considered by Town Council for final approval at the
January 9, 2020 Council meeting.

Service Options: Billing Cycle Monthly 
Fee

Annual 
Fee 

Twice weekly curbside solid waste service
(no curbside recycling service)

Monthly–
Through Tempe 

$20.14 $242

Twice weekly curbside solid waste service
(no curbside recycling service)

Quarterly –
Direct 

$20.84 $250

One weekly recycling and one weekly solid
waste curbside service (existing service)

Monthly–
Through Tempe

$23.90 $286

One weekly recycling and one weekly solid
waste curbside service (existing service)

Quarterly –
Direct

$24.60 $295

Page 89



Solid Waste Service Options: 

Best Value Comparison:

Page 90



Solid Waste Service Options: 

Comparison of service options: 

Page 91



Solid Waste Service Option 
Recommendations: 

Service Option Recommendations:

1. Twice per week curbside solid waste service and no curbside recycling service at a fee of $20.14 per 
month.

2. Maintain the current $20.75 monthly fee resulting in no fee increase for 18 months through June 
2021.  

3. Apply the 61 cents to the anticipated fee increases in FY2021/22, beginning July 1, 2021. 
4. Maintain monthly billing through the City of Tempe. 
5. Provide a recycling rolloff at the Town Maintenance Yard for voluntary recycling.
6. Provide 2 rolloffs for public disposal and 2 rolloffs for Town disposal at the Town Maintenance Yard.
7. Provide quarterly community rolloffs at 8 locations throughout Town.
8. Establish annual street, sidewalk and alley repair fund in Solid Waste cost center.   

Page 92



Town of Guadalupe 
SOLID WASTE FINANCIAL REPORT

Thank you 
Questions? 

Page 93



1 
 

 
 

 

 

Town of Guadalupe    
December 9, 2019 Town Council Regular Meeting 
Agenda Item: G8 

 
 

Solid Waste and Recycling Services Contract Recommendation Report 
 
Recommendation: Award a ten-year contract to RAD, Right Away Disposal, to provide solid waste disposal and recycling 
services, effective March 1, 2020.   
 
Further, staff recommends RAD, Right Away Disposal provide solid waste disposal and recycling services, effective March 1, 
2020, of twice weekly curbside solid waste and maintenance yard recycling receptacle collection service at the existing monthly 
fee of $20.75 and existing billing process.   Lastly, staff recommends completing the contract and returning to Council for 
approval of final contract at the January 9, 2020 meeting.   

 
Background information:   The Town issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) RFP 2019-02, on September 23, 2019, seeking 
proposals from qualified firms to establish a ten-year contract for the residential solid waste, recycling collection, and disposal 
services within the town limits; and, for collection and disposal of solid waste and recyclables at the Town Public Works, 
Maintenance Yard.  Proposals from qualified firms were due on October 25, 2019.  The selected firm would provide residential 
collection and disposal services for up to a ten-year period.   
 
Presently, the Town has contracted with a collection and disposal service provider since 2002, where four contract 
amendments in 2005, 2007, 2010, and 2014 resulted in contract extensions.  The current contract expires on February 29, 
2020.  Given current solid waste and recycling market conditions, length of the current contract, and the financial conditions 
of the Town, specifically for FY2019/20 because solid waste fund expenditures are exceeding revenues a RFP process was 
executed.  Additionally, this approach was presented and recommended at the April 25, 2019 Town Council Regular Meeting, 
item G2: Proposed FY2019/2020 Town Budget Introduction.  
 
For 2019, the Town will generate an estimated annual volume of waste:  

 
• Solid Waste:  1,600 tons 
• Recyclables: 343.5 tons 
• Contamination of recyclables: 130 tons 
• % Contamination of recyclables:   35.2% 
• Actual Recyclables: 220.5 tons 
• Total Combined Collection: 1,998.5 tons  
• % of Total waste diverted from waste stream (through recycling): 13.3%  

 
The Request for Proposal (RFP) included a menu of services options to provide choices to best meet the needs of the residents 
and to encourage best and competitive pricing.  Moreover, annual price escalation was tied to the Consumer Price Index 
(CPU) to protect against unforeseen price escalation.  
 
Additionally, proposers could bid on any combination of the service options identified in the RFP, Exhibit A – Cost Proposal: 
Standard Services and Additional Services and Options.   
 

Page 94



2 
 

Notification of the solicitation was published on the Town website and in the newspaper.   Proposal offers were received from 
three firms: 

• RAD Right Away Disposal  (RAD) 
• Republic Services (RS)  
• Waste Management of Arizona, Inc. (WM)  

 
Review of Submittals: 

 
An evaluation committee comprised of Town staff and the Town Engineer reviewed and scored the offers based on the criteria 
identified in the RFP and shown in Table 1 below.  Criteria included two components:  A) Ability to perform work and method 
of approach: billing procedures, customer service, collection procedures, equipment, routes and schedules, container 
replacement, public outreach and education, solid waste and recycling collections; and B) Standard Service options and 
associated costs and pricing. 
 
Respondents were asked to clarify pricing, propose a costs if the City of Tempe were to maintain billing and provide their best 
and final offers. 
 

Table 1 
 

Method of Approach Scoring Element Points 
General Information 30 
Experience and Qualifications 40 
Scope of Work  50 
Method of Approach  40 
Clarity, Thoroughness of Proposal 30 
Recognition of Addenda 10 

Possible Method of Approach / Technical Total   200 
 

The total “weight” for each Pricing Proposal is 100.  Pricing and cost of service offers was based on Exhibit A Standard 
Service Options.  Price was a weighted element using the following formula to determine the pricing score: 

 
Lowest Priced Proposal 

  Received  
 

X 100 
 

= Pricing Score 
Cost of Proposal Being Evaluated 

 
The maximum number of points is 300 (Technical 200 plus Price 100). 
 
Criteria A:   Method of Approach Evaluation Results: 
 
Evaluation of the Method of Approach responses in each of the three proposals yielded the following scoring results from the 
committee:   
 

Proposing Firm: Republic RAD WM 
Method of Approach Total 
Points  

727 706 607 

Method of Approach 
Average Score  

181.75 176.50 151.75 

 
 
 
 

Page 95



3 
 

Criteria B: Standard Service options and associated costs and pricing: 
 
Price analysis and evaluation was based on the proposed costs of services identified in RFP Exhibit A (attached). 
Evaluation considered standard services of: 

• Weekly curbside residential recycling and solid waste collection; 
• weekly maintenance yard service of 4 rolloffs; and  
• quarterly Town-wide community rolloff service consisting of 8 locations with 10 rolloffs. 

 
And Additional Services of:  

• 1 additional 96 Gallon Receptacle for solid waste disposal.  
 
Finally, a comparison of current weekly residential curbside services:  

• one weekly solid waste and one weekly recycling service compared to 
• two weekly solid waste services and no weekly recycling service.   

 
The following table provides a summary of service costs proposed from each respondent:  
 

• All proposed costs are based on maintaining City of Tempe utility billing from to customer/homeowner.   
 

• The solid waste fee would continue to be included with water and sewer billing through the City of Tempe.   
 

• All proposed costs of curbside recycling service are more than the proposed costs of twice weekly curbside solid waste 
only service.   

 
• All proposed monthly fees are through the City of Tempe billing, and are less than direct billing.  

 
• All proposals include an annual increase equal to the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U).  

 
• All proposals include an 8% administration fee to be used by the Town to repair streets, potholes, sidewalks, and alleyways.   

 

 

SOLID WASTE PROPOSAL:   COST PROPOSAL COMPARISON -  Monthly cost to customer Maintain Tempe Billing 3-Dec-19

871 accounts Republic Services RAD Waste Mgmt. 
1 Solid Waste / 1 recycle:  TOWN Quarterly: Monthly Quarterly: Monthly Monthly 

Current Cost   Recycle: Solid Waste: Solid Waste: Recycle: Solid Waste: Recycle: Solid Waste: Recycle: Solid Waste:

Service option 
curbside residential collection $20.75 $19.75 $18.24 $18.27 $16.89 $17.75 $13.99 $17.05 $13.29 $19.21 $18.42
Weekly Maint. Yard Rolloff pick up 
1 rolloff $0.00
2 rolloffs $0.00
3 rolloffs $0.00
4 rolloffs $0.00 $5.67 $5.67 $5.67 $5.67 $3.88 $3.88 $3.88 $3.88 $3.80 $3.80
5 rolloffs $0.00
6 rolloffs $0.00
Quarterly Com. $0.00 $1.21 $1.21 $1.21 $1.21 $2.97 $2.97 $2.97 $2.97 $0.95 $0.95

Monthy Cost to Customer $20.75 $26.63 $25.12 $25.15 $23.77 $24.60 $20.84 $23.90 $20.14 $23.96 $23.17

Monthly Billing Change ($) $0.00 $5.88 $4.37 $4.40 $3.02 $3.85 $0.09 $3.15 -$0.61 $3.21 $2.42
Monthly Billing Change (%) 0.00% 28.34% 21.06% 21.20% 14.55% 18.55% 0.43% 15.18% -2.94% 15.47% 11.66%

205 accounts 
2 Solid Waste / 1 Recycle: 
Base Cost to Customer $20.75 $26.63 $25.12 $25.15 $23.77 $24.60 $20.84 $23.90 $20.14 $23.96 $23.17
2nd  Solid Waste Bin $20.75 $5.11 $5.11 $5.11 $5.11 $12.00 $12.00 $12.00 $12.00 $10.75 $10.75

Monthly Cost to Customer $41.50 $31.74 $30.23 $30.26 $28.88 $36.60 $32.84 $35.90 $32.14 $34.71 $33.92

Monthly Billing Change $0.00 -$9.76 -$11.27 -$11.24 -$12.62 -$4.90 -$8.66 -$5.60 -$9.36 -$6.79 -$7.58
Monthly Billing Change (%) 0.00% -23.52% -27.16% -27.08% -30.41% -11.81% -20.87% -13.49% -22.55% -16.36% -18.27%

Page 96



4 
 

    
Service cost evaluation: 
  
As the top portion of the table below illustrates, with one exception, all costs proposed result in an increase over the current $20.75 
monthly fee.   The proposed RAD solid waste only service monthly billing of $20.14 results in a 61 cent decrease in monthly fees. This 
is followed by RAD’s recycling service proposal of $23.90 resulting in a $3.15 increase.   These proposals are applicable to the 871 
residential accounts that have one recycling service and one solid waste service weekly.    
 
The lower portion of the table summarizes proposed costs for the 205 current accounts with two solid waste services and one recycling 
weekly.  In all cases, all proposed monthly fees would be reduced.    
 
When evaluating and comparing the proposed monthly costs, RAD’s proposal provided the best value to the Town 
customers/homeowners.  The combination of moderate price 15.18% increase for the 871 customers with one solid waste and one 
recycling weekly service and a moderate decrease -2.94% for the two solid waste services weekly offered a balanced value to the 
community.   
 
RFP respondents were asked to provide additional cost proposals for:  multiple rolloff service at the Maintenance Yard; direct billing on 
a monthly and quarterly basis; and monthly billing through the City of Tempe.  These additional cost proposals were incorporated into 
the evaluation.  Proposed costs from each respondent were evaluated based on the formula provided.    
 
Final Results: 
The three proposals were measured and scored based on method of approach and pricing criteria.  The three firms were contacted to 
clarify pricing information and were given the opportunity to provide a best and final offer.  The resulting scoring is as follows:   
 

Evaluation Results:     
Proposing Firm: Republic Services  RAD Waste Mgmt. 

Method of Approach Total 
Points  

727 706 607 

Method of Approach 
Average Score  

181.75 176.50 151.75 

Pricing Proposal Score 74.61 88.04 81.61 
TOTAL SCORE: 256.4 264.54 233.4 

 
Community Survey Results: 
 
The RFP respondents provided a menu of service options and associated costs.   To determine what service options are important 
to the community, the Town surveyed the community over the past two weeks, the results are attached.  Seven questions were asked 
and 185 responses were received.  While this is not a statistically or scientifically administered survey, it does provide an indicator of 
community preferences, as follows: 
 
Of the 185 respondents:  
 

• Slightly more than 55% prefer two solid waste services per week; 45% prefer one recycling and one solid waste, per week.  
 

• Of the respondents who prefer recycling, slightly more than 55% would be willing to pay about a $1.00 more per month for 
recycling services.  

 
• The majority of respondents, 75% prefer monthly billing to quarterly billing.  However, the majority 67% were not willing to 

pay approximately $7.00 more per month for monthly billing.  
 

• Half the respondents would be willing to voluntarily bring recyclables to the Town yard, if curbside recycling service was 
discontinued.  

 
• More respondents use the dumpsters at the maintenance yard than those who do not.  

Page 97



5 
 

 
• Slightly more respondents 53% use the quarterly community Town-wide dumpster than 48% who do not. 

 
• Lastly, a number of general comments were shared.  

 
Recycling Habits and History: 

 

 

 
 
The Town of Guadalupe’s recycling efforts to divert recyclables from the waste stream have resulted in a monthly average 
contamination rate of 35.2%, resulting in only an average of 11.6% of waste removed from the waste stream.  These percentages 
have been consistent since 2017.    
 
A successful recycling program averages about 10-12% of contamination or less, with a diversion rate of 30-35%.   The Town of 
Guadalupe’s efforts are not meeting these industry standards.   
 
Recommendation: 

 
The method of approach and pricing evaluation results indicate Right Away Disposal (RAD) offered a competitive method of approach 
and the greater value in overall pricing, thereby receiving the highest evaluation score.  
 
It is recommended that Right Away Disposal (RAD) be awarded a 10-year contract for residential Solid Waste and Recycling Services 
with the Town of Guadalupe commencing on March 1, 2020.  
 
Due to the unique circumstances, staff is recommending that Council approve a contract with RAD in its substantial form.  The 
complete and final contract would then be considered by Town Council for final approval at the January 9, 2020, Regular Council 
meeting.   

  

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
MSW 121.4 116.1 150.3 116.9 130.8 128.4 115.9 140.7 111.8 126.2 146.5 1405.1

Recycle 32.3 25.6 26.9 24.9 28.3 27.4 31.9 27.5 25.2 34.4 27.7 312.1
Contamination 13.3 10.6 9.5 8.8 10.0 9.6 11.2 9.7 8.9 12.1 9.8 113.4

Recycling Actual 19.0 15.0 17.4 16.2 18.3 17.8 20.7 17.8 16.3 22.3 17.9 198.7
*Updated: average contamination since 1/2017 is 35.2%

Total Combined 153.7 141.7 177.2 141.9 159.1 155.8 147.8 168.2 137.0 160.5 174.2 1717.2
Diversion  % 12.3% 10.6% 9.8% 11.4% 11.5% 11.4% 14.0% 10.6% 11.9% 13.9% 10.3% 11.6%

2018 Town of Guadalupe Diversion Report

Diversion Tons

Page 98



6 
 

 
Options:  
 
All proposals provided service option choices, RAD offered the best value to customer/homeowners.  Four options highlighted below 
are:  

 
Service Option  Billing Frequency   Monthly Fee Annual 

Fee  
Twice weekly curbside solid waste service (no 
curbside recycling service) 

Monthly –  thru Tempe  $20.14 $242 

Twice weekly curbside solid waste service (no 
curbside recycling service) 

Quarterly / Direct  $20.84 $250 

One weekly recycling and one weekly solid waste 
curbside service (existing service)  

Monthly –  thru Tempe $23.90 $286 

One weekly recycling and one weekly solid waste 
curbside service (existing service)  

Quarterly / Direct $24.60 $295 

 
Best Value Comparison: 

 
 

Comparison of service options: 

 
 

Page 99



7 
 

Service Option Recommendations:  
 

1. Twice per week curbside solid waste service and no curbside recycling service at a fee of $20.14 per month. 
2. Maintain the current $20.75 monthly fee resulting in no fee increase for 18 months through June 2021.   
3. Apply the 61 cents to the anticipated fee increases in FY2021/22, beginning July 1, 2021.  
4. Maintain monthly billing through the City of Tempe.  
5. Provide a recycling rolloff at the Town Maintenance Yard for voluntary recycling. 
6. Provide 2 rolloffs for public disposal and 2 rolloffs for Town disposal at the Town Maintenance Yard. 
7. Provide quarterly community rolloffs at 8 locations throughout Town. 
8. Establish an annual street, sidewalk, and alley repair fund in Solid Waste cost center.    

 
Alternative Choices:  
 

Other service options are available and may be selected.     Should Council choose an option requiring a fee increase, the 
Town is required per ARS 9-499.15 to post a Notice of Intent at least fifteen days before the date the governing body of the 
municipality will approve or disapprove the proposal.    
 

Because of this, and the fact that a service option has not been selected, final approval of the complete executed contract is 
proposed for the January 9, 2020 Town Council Regular meeting.    
 
Summary Recommendation: 

 
Staff recommends RAD, Right Away Disposal provide solid waste disposal and recycling services, effective March 1, 2020, of twice 
weekly curbside solid waste and maintenance yard recycling receptacle collection service at the existing monthly fee of $20.75 and 
existing billing process.   Lastly, staff recommends completing the contract and returning to Council for approval of final contract at 
the January 9, 2020 meeting.   

Page 100



Report for Trash & Recycle Survey

C o mpletio n Ra te: 10 0 %

 Complete 185

T o ta ls : 18 5

Response Counts

1. Do you prefer one recycling collection and one solid waste collection weekly or
two solid waste collections weekly?   

45% One recycling collection and
one solid waste collection weekly
45% One recycling collection and
one solid waste collection weekly

55% Two solid waste collections
weekly
55% Two solid waste collections
weekly

Value  Percent Responses

One recycling  collection and one solid waste collection weekly 44.6% 79

T wo solid waste collections weekly 55.4% 98

  T o ta ls : 17 7

Page 101



2. If  you prefer recycling collection, are you willing to pay about $1.00 more per
month for the recycling service?   

55% Yes55% Yes

45% No45% No

Value  Percent Responses

Yes 55.1% 97

No 44.9% 79

  T o ta ls : 17 6

3. Do you prefer monthly or quarterly billing?  

Page 102



74% Monthly74% Monthly

26% Quarterly26% Quarterly

Value  Percent Responses

Monthly 74.4% 128

Quarterly 25.6% 44

  T o ta ls : 17 2

4. If  you prefer monthly, are you willing to pay about $7.00 more per month for
monthly billing?  

Page 103



33% Yes33% Yes

67% No67% No

Value  Percent Responses

Yes 33.1% 57

No 66.9% 115

  T o ta ls : 17 2

5. If  weekly recycling service was discontinued, would you voluntarily bring
recyclables to a recycling dumpster at the T own maintenance yard?  

Page 104



49% Yes49% Yes
51% No51% No

Value  Percent Responses

Yes 49.4% 89

No 50 .6% 91

  T o ta ls : 18 0

6. How often do you use the dump at the Maintenance yard?  

Page 105



14% Always14% Always

48% Sometimes48% Sometimes

38% Never38% Never

Value  Percent Responses

Always 13.8% 25

Sometimes 48.1% 87

Never 38.1% 69

  T o ta ls : 18 1

7. Do you participate in the T own wide clean up, where dumpsters are located
throughout the community, every three months?   

Page 106



53% Yes53% Yes

47% No47% No

Value  Percent Responses

Yes 53.3% 97

No 46.7% 85

  T o ta ls : 18 2

8. Please share suggestions and comments.  

town
clean

trashdumpsters

participate break bring

community

containers

drivers
easy

fill

pay

people replace

wide

yard

cans

dumpster

full

noticequarterlyrecyclables

recycle

recycling

Page 107



ResponseID Response

8 I don't know if i would bring  recyclables to the T own yard. T he dumpsters are always full

during  the quarterly events.

11 I just think the dumpsters should be available  more than just Saturday.

16 When dumpsters are place by the time I notice there all fill up. Maybe you should place

more.

17 I never g et a notice about the community clean ups.

20 Please inform drivers to take it easy with containers. T hey break them. We pay to

replace them.

21 Please tell drivers to g o easy on containers. T hey break them and we pay to replace

them.

22 I recycle  at my work. Collect aluminum and plastic.

23 Senior center money--i want to know where it is. Who is accounting  for it?

27 Hope they don't keep breaking  the trash cans. Your welcome.

32 Can't g et a chance other's come and fill up instead of people that the dumpsters are

placed.

33 Big g est problem: other people come to dump onour trash bins. Larg e objects.

Sometimes use the quarterly because other people dump couches, sofas, etc. I am not

able to participate in town dump event yet.

45 If I had to bring  my recycling  to the dumpster @  the yard, I would. I don't participate in the

T own wide clean up because there's no dumpster near my house. T he dumpsters are

always at the 40  and hardly on the east side on Sonora and Vaou nawi.

46 $7.0 0  Is this Instead of the $20 .0 0  already billed Monthly .

48 Sometime we help people who don't have a vehicle  and no one pay's for our g as its a

community thing s when available. T hank you. Also some eldery cannot do for themself.

52 If I have a ride to the yard for my recycle.

55 All ready paying  too much in trash.

58 what ever helps to keep our town clean.

59 why can we have dumpster weekly at certain sites to throw heavy stuff away.

60 More cans for trash.

Page 108



61 Cause by the tie  we do it;s full.

64 T o have more dumster

69 Do not have recycling  in my area.

71 that's why taxes are for to pay for what is needed.

89 I don't have transportation so I would not bring  recyclables to the maint yd. I sometimes

participate in the T own wide clean up.

90 No I don't participate in the T own wide clean up because they fill up quick.

92 T alk to the company to talk to drivers to g o easy when picking  trash, they break

containers and and way to replace.

114 GOT  T O GET  AISLES CLEANED

139 On question 3-Doesn't matter. On question 5-If I had time.

142 Lower the bill.

146 T his is helpful for the community.

183 A clean town is a healther town.We need to impose fines on those who liter.

184 Will there be new trash can avaliable?T hat would be g reat.

ResponseID Response
Page 109



9- 499. 15.   Pr oposed new or  i ncr eased muni ci pal  t axes and f ees;  
not i f i cat i on;  except i ons 

A.   A muni ci pal i t y may not  l evy or  assess any new t axes or  f ees or  
i ncr ease exi st i ng t axes or  f ees pur suant  t o st at ut e on a busi ness wi t hout  
compl yi ng wi t h t hi s sect i on.  

B.   A muni ci pal i t y t hat  pr oposes t o l evy or  assess a t ax or  f ee shal l :  
1.   Pr epar e a schedul e of  t he pr oposed new or  i ncr eased t ax or  f ee t hat  

i ncl udes t he amount  of  t he t ax or  f ee and a wr i t t en r epor t  or  dat a t hat  
suppor t s t he new or  i ncr eased t ax or  f ee.   A copy of  t he r epor t  or  dat a shal l  
be f i l ed i n t he of f i ce of  t he cl er k of  t he muni ci pal i t y.  

2.   I f  t he i mposi t i on of  t he pr oposed t ax or  f ee i s a new char ge,  
pr ovi de wr i t t en not i ce of  t he pr oposed char ge,  t he schedul e of  t he pr oposed 
new char ge and t he wr i t t en r epor t  or  dat a t hat  suppor t s t he new char ge on t he 
home page of  t he muni ci pal i t y' s websi t e at  l east  si xt y days bef or e t he dat e 
t he pr oposed new t ax or  f ee i s appr oved or  di sappr oved by t he gover ni ng body 
of  t he muni ci pal i t y.  

3.   I f  t he muni ci pal i t y pr oposes t o i ncr ease t he r at e of  an exi st i ng 
t ax or  f ee on a busi ness,  pr ovi de wr i t t en not i ce of  t he pr oposed i ncr ease,  
t he schedul e of  t he pr oposed i ncr eased t ax or  f ee and t he wr i t t en r epor t  or  
dat a t hat  suppor t s t he pr oposed i ncr eased t ax or  f ee on t he home page of  t he 
muni ci pal i t y' s websi t e at  l east  si xt y days bef or e t he dat e t he pr oposed new 
r at e i s appr oved or  di sappr oved by t he gover ni ng body of  t he muni ci pal i t y.  

4.   Pr epar e a not i ce of  i nt ent  t o est abl i sh or  i ncr ease t axes,  
assessment s or  f ees i ncl udi ng assessment s pur suant  t o sect i on 48- 572,  
subsect i on B,  par agr aph 1.   The not i ce of  i nt ent  shal l  i ncl ude t he dat e,  t i me 
and pl ace of  t he meet i ng of  t he gover ni ng body of  t he muni ci pal i t y i n whi ch 
t he pr oposed new or  i ncr eased t ax or  f ee wi l l  be consi der ed and a st at ement  
t hat  a schedul e of  t he pr oposed new or  i ncr eased t ax or  f ee t hat  i ncl udes t he 
amount  of  t he t ax or  f ee and a wr i t t en r epor t  or  dat a t hat  suppor t s t he new 
or  i ncr eased t ax or  f ee i s avai l abl e on t he muni ci pal i t y' s websi t e.   The 
not i ce of  i nt ent  shal l  be post ed on t he muni ci pal i t y' s websi t e at  l east  
f i f t een days bef or e t he dat e t he pr oposed new or  i ncr eased t ax or  f ee wi l l  be 
appr oved or  di sappr oved by t he gover ni ng body of  t he muni ci pal i t y.   I f  t he 
muni ci pal i t y uses soci al  medi a or  ot her  el ect r oni c communi cat i on t ool s,  t he 
not i ce of  i nt ent  shal l  be di st r i but ed t hr ough t he muni ci pal i t y' s soci al  medi a 
account s or  ot her  el ect r oni c communi cat i on t ool s.  

C.   Al l  depar t ment s,  boar ds or  ot her  subdi vi si ons of  a muni ci pal i t y 
t hat  ar e aut hor i zed t o est abl i sh or  modi f y t axes or  f ees shal l  f ol l ow t he 
not i ce r equi r ement s pr escr i bed i n subsect i on B of  t hi s sect i on bef or e t he 
dat e of  t he ent i t y' s consi der at i on of  t he new or  i ncr eased t ax or  f ee.   

D.   Technol ogi cal  i ssues t hat  ei t her  pr event  t he post i ng of  t he not i ce 
on t he muni ci pal i t y' s websi t e or  di st r i but i on of  t he not i ce t hr ough soci al  
medi a or  ot her  el ect r oni c communi cat i on t ool s does not  pr ecl ude t he gover ni ng 
body of  t he muni ci pal i t y f r om appr ovi ng or  di sappr ovi ng t he new or  i ncr eased 
t ax or  f ee at  t he meet i ng pr ovi ded on t he not i ce of  i nt ent .  

E.   A muni ci pal i t y shal l  demonst r at e t hat  t he t axes or  f ees ar e i mposed 
pur suant  t o st at ut e.  

F.   Subsect i ons A and B of  t hi s sect i on do not  appl y t o:  
1.   Any f ee adopt ed pur suant  t o sect i on 9- 463. 05.  
2.   Wat er  and wast ewat er  r at es or  r at e component s.  
3.   Fees f or  r egi st r at i on- based cl asses,  pr ogr ams or  act i vi t i es 

pr ovi ded by t he muni ci pal i t y.  
4.   Cour t  f ees est abl i shed pur suant  t o st at e l aw.  
5.   Fees or  char ges est abl i shed pur suant  t o f eder al  l aw f or  publ i c 

housi ng or  ot her  f eder al l y f unded pr ogr ams.  
6.   Ot her  f ees whose amount s ar e set  by st at e or  f eder al  l aw.   
G.   I f  i nf or mat i on i s made avai l abl e r el at i ng t o t he f ees pr ovi ded i n 

subsect i on F of  t hi s sect i on,  t hat  i nf or mat i on shal l  be post ed on t he 

Page 110



muni ci pal i t y' s websi t e and,  i f  t he muni ci pal i t y uses soci al  medi a or  ot her  
el ect r oni c communi cat i on t ool s,  di st r i but ed t hr ough soci al  medi a or  ot her  
el ect r oni c communi cat i on t ool s.  

H.   I n addi t i on t o any ot her  l i mi t at i on t hat  may be i mposed by l aw,  a 
muni ci pal i t y shal l  not  l evy or  i mpose an assessment ,  f ee or  t ax on hospi t al  
r evenues,  di schar ges,  beds or  ser vi ces f or  t he pur pose of  r ecei vi ng ser vi ces 
or  payment s pur suant  t o t i t l e 36,  chapt er  29.   
 

Page 111



 
 

 

  
 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
NOTICE OF INTENT - INCREASED FEES 

 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-499.15, the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona (“Guadalupe”) hereby gives notice that it may 
adopt a resolution to increase fees on residential and commercial solid waste collection services. 
 
The Guadalupe Town Council will consider this matter at its regular Town Council meeting to be held at 
the Guadalupe Town Council Chambers, located at 9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui, Guadalupe, Arizona 85283, 
on Thursday, January 9, 2020, at 6:00 PM. Following such consideration, the Town Council may approve, 
disapprove or modify said resolution. 
 
Information about the proposed fees is available at the Town Clerk’s office during normal office hours, 
Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM.  
 
 
DATE POSTED ON GUADALUPE WEBSITE:  December 10, 2019 

Page 112



MC-ESA-Revised for The Town of Guadalupe 102219  PAGE 1 OF 4 

MARICOPA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
2 4 1 1  W e s t  1 4 t h  S t r e e t ,  T e m p e ,  A Z   8 5 2 8 1 - 6 9 4 2  

EDUCATIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 
This Educational Services Agreement (“Agreement”)) is between THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE (“The Town”) 
and MARICOPA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT (“MCCCD”) for its Colleges (the 
“College(s)”) for the provision of certain educational services. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
In support of The Town’s mission “to strengthen the future of The Town of Guadalupe and its residents through 
programs and services that support and enhance career exploration and educational opportunities available to its 
residents and the surrounding community,” The Town is seeking career exploration and educational opportunities for 
its residents and to members of the surrounding communities (“Students”). 
 
MCCCD will provide learning opportunities that align with The Town’s mission. 
 
MCCCD and The Town desire to enter into a mutually beneficial agreement for the provision of career learning 
opportunities (the “Program”).   
 

AGREEMENT 
 
The parties agree as follows: 
 
1. Duration.  This Agreement will be effective on December 1, 2019 (“Effective Date”) and will expire on 

October 31, 2024 (“Term”) unless terminated under Paragraph 5, or renewed through a written amendment 
issued pursuant to Paragraph 11. 

 
2. Enrollment Requirements.  The minimum number of Students required per Program is 15 Students.  The 

Town will provide the total number and names of each Student to the Colleges no later than 10 business 
days prior to the Program start date to allow the Colleges to properly plan and prepare and produce the 
Program materials.  Enrollment is open to The Town’s residents for at least the first 15 seats and to Non-
Town residents for any remaining available seats. 
 

2.1. Certified Logistics Associate (“CLA”) Program. For the CLA Program to run, a minimum of 15 
Students comprised of The Town’s residents must be participating or paid for.  If the College cancels 
the Program, refunds will be provided to The Town.  If The Town cancels the Program, The Town will 
pay for its 15 Students if costs have incurred by the College. Any Non-Town Students counted after The 
Town’s 15 Students will be provided refunds based on MCCCD’s refund policy. 

2.2. Electrical Installer Program. For the Electrical Installer Program to run, a minimum of 15 Students 
comprised of The Town’s residents must be participating or paid for.  If the College cancels the 
Program, refunds will be provided to The Town.  If The Town cancels the Program, The Town will pay 
for its 15 Students if costs have incurred by the College. Any Non-Town Students counted after The 
Town’s 15 Students will be provided refunds based on MCCCD’s refund policy. 

2.3. Career Foundation Program. For the Career Foundation Program to run, a minimum of 15 Students 
comprised of The Town’s residents must be participating or paid for. All refunds will be based on 
MCCCD’s refund policy.   

 
3. Town Resident.  For the purpose of this Agreement a Town resident is a person who currently resides in 

the Town of Guadalupe for at least a period of three (3) months, with proof of official identification 

 

Page 113



MC-ESA-Revised for The Town of Guadalupe 102219  PAGE 2 OF 4 

(Arizona Identification Card or State of Arizona driver’s license along with the most current 3 months 
utility bills or residential lease agreement.  

 
3. Instructional Services and Career Foundations. 
 

3.1 The Colleges will provide instructors for the Programs.  The Programs will be offered at two College 
locations and one Town location 

 
a) GateWay Community College (“GWCC”), Central City Campus: 1245 East Buckeye Road, 

Phoenix, AZ 85034,  
 
b) Guadalupe Center South Mountain Community College (“SMCC”): 9233 S. Avenida del 

Yaqui, Guadalupe, AZ 85283; or 
 
c) The Guadalupe Mercado, Multipurpose Room: 9201 S. Avenida del Yaqui, Guadalupe, AZ 

85283. 
 

3.2 Students will enroll in the Program of choice through the Colleges’ enrollment process. 
 

a) Certified Logistics Associate 
• This Program prepares for work in the supply chain and warehousing industry. The 

Program’s short term benefits allow the Students to prepare for the certifying exam in as 
little as one week. The Program is partnered with employers that want to hire successful 
graduates. Students must be 18 years of age or older, eligible to work in the United 
States, and pass a timed exam on a computer. 

• This Program will be held at South Mountain Community College Guadalupe Center or 
at GateWay Community College Central City Campus.  

b) Electrical Installer 
• This is a 372 clock hour course that results in a Certificate of Competency (CCT) for 

Electrical Installer that introduces the fundamentals of electrical theory, residential 
wiring, and a basic understanding of electrical requirements of the National Electric 
Code (NEC). 

• This Program may be held at the South Mountain Community College Guadalupe Center 
or at GateWay Community College Central City Campus. 

c) Career Foundations 
• This is a non-credit Program designed to focus on career assessments, resume writing, 

interview skills, and can also include college readiness components. 
• This will be offered at the South Mountain Community College Guadalupe Center. 

 
4. Billing for Program Services. 

4.1 The total price for all Town Students to attend the Programs, for at least 45 Students (15 Students per 
Program) including applicable learning materials (books) , lab fees, exam fees, tools and supplies, 
instruction, and Program development and management.  MCCCD will invoice The Town 50% of 
the total Program costs at least 10 days prior to the Program start date to secure classrooms and 
instructional staff.  Payment is due to MCCCD within 30 days of the invoice date.  The remaining 
balance will be due to MCCCD within 30 days of the Town’s receipt of the MCCCD invoice.  The 
Town may also choose to make one payment in full.  MCCCD Program fees are estimated. Fees may 
change based on cost fluctuations Program materials, instructor fees, etc. MCCCD shall use its best 
commercial efforts to limit any increases hereunder as much as possible and MCCCD agrees to 

Page 114

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/price-increase


MC-ESA-Revised for The Town of Guadalupe 102219  PAGE 3 OF 4 

provide backup documentation for increases upon The Town’s request.  The Town will be invoiced 
and responsible for payment for any of The Town Students who drop out of the Program(s) per 
MCCCD refund policy. 

 4.1.1 Program Fees for Town Students: 

• Certified Logistics Associate Program 

o $680.00 per Student 

• Electrical Installer Program 

o $2,375.00 per Student 

• Career Foundation Program 

o $225.00 per Student 

4.2 All non-Town Students will be responsible for paying the Colleges directly for the cost of attending 
the Program(s). Program course fees shall reflect current MCCCD rates for its colleges at the time of 
non-Town Student enrollment.  MCCCD fees and tuition rates are subject to change. 

4.3 As of the Effective Date of this Agreement and no later than January 31, 2020, The Town shall hire 
1-2 Town residents for the recruitment of The Town’s residents for the purpose of instituting 
awareness, connection, and enrollment in the Programs.  MCCCD’s American Indian Outreach 
Office shall pay The Town $1,600.00 for hiring and overseeing of the 1-2 Town residents. The 
Town’s recruitment efforts shall be completed by January 31, 2020. Should there be any remaining 
MCCCD funds at the end of the recruitment period, The Town shall refund any remaining funds to 
MCCCD’s American Indian Outreach Office.  

5. Termination. 
 

5.1 Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving a 30-day written notice of intent to terminate to 
the other party.   

5.2 MCCCD and the Colleges may terminate this Agreement under Arizona Revised Statutes §38-511 
for a conflict of interest. 

 
6. Indemnification.  Each party (as ‘indemnitor’) agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other 

party (as ‘indemnitee’) from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including 
reasonable attorney’s fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘claims’) arising out of bodily injury or any 
person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that such claims which resulting 
vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or 
other fault of the indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees, or volunteers. 

 
7. Nondiscrimination.  The Town will comply with all applicable state and federal law, rules, regulations and 

executive orders governing equal employment opportunity, immigration, and nondiscrimination, including 
the Americans With Disabilities Act.  If applicable, the parties will abide by the requirements of 41 CFR §§ 
60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a).  These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified 
individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit 
discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, age, or national origin.  
Moreover, these regulations require that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action 
to employ and advance in employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national 
original, protected veteran status or disability.  MCCCD also prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, 
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, citizenship status (including 
document abuse), disability, veteran status or genetic information. 

 
8. Disability Guidelines. The Town warrants that it complies with all applicable Arizona and federal disabilities 

laws and regulations. The Town warrants that the services to be provided under this Agreement comply with 

Page 115



MC-ESA-Revised for The Town of Guadalupe 102219  PAGE 4 OF 4 

the accessibility requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §12101 
et seq.) and its implementing regulations set forth at Title 28, Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 35 and 36, 
Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794d) and its implementing 
regulations set forth at Title 36, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1194; and maintain, if applicable, Web 
Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.0 at Level AA (WCAG 2.0 AA). The Town further agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless MCCCD from any claims arising out of its failure to comply with the aforesaid 
requirements.  Failure to comply with these requirements shall constitute a material breach and be grounds for 
termination of this Agreement. 

 
9. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona.  Nothing in this 

Agreement waives either party’s sovereign immunity.     
 
10. Funds Unavailable.  MCCCD and the Colleges may terminate this Agreement in future fiscal years if funds 

become unavailable for the Programs that this Agreement supports. 
 
11. Amendment.  The parties may amend this Agreement only through a written amendment signed by 

representatives of each party who are authorized to sign contracts. 
 
12. Use of MCCCD/College Logo or Name.  The Town may only use MCCCD’s or the College’s name or logo 

for the Programs subject to this Agreement and only with the prior written approval of MCCCD or the 
Colleges. 

 
 
 
THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE: 
 
 
By: ________________________________________ 
 Its Authorized Agent 
 
Name: Jeff Kulaga     
 
Title: Town Manager/Clerk    
 
Date: _______________________________________ 
 
 
Other Approvals (if required) 
By: ________________________________________ 
 
Name: ______________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________________ 
 

MCCCD: 
MARICOPA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
for GateWay Community College 
 
By: ________________________________________ 

Its Authorized Agent 
 

Name: Leslie Kyman Cooper    
 
Title: General Counsel     
  
Date: _______________________________________ 

 

Page 116



These programs will run from January through March 2020. Residents may choose only one course, tuition free, from the following 
menu of programs: 

Certified Logistics Associate 
Learn a new career in one week.  This program prepares students for work in the supply chain and warehousing industry.  The 
program’s short term benefits allow you to prepare for the certifying exam in as little as one week. The program is partnered with 
employers that want to hire successful graduates.  Must be 18 years of age, eligible to work in the US, and pass a timed exam on a 
computer.  This program will be held at the Guadalupe South Mountain Community College center or GateWay Community College’s 
Central City Campus.

Electrical Installer 
This is a 372 clock hour program that results in a Certificate of Competency (CCT) for Electrical Installer that introduces the 
fundamentals of electrical theory, residential wiring, and a basic understanding of electrical requirements of the National Electric 
Code (NEC).  This program may be held at the Guadalupe South Mountain Community College center or GateWay Community 
College’s Central City Campus.

Career Foundations 
This is a non-credit program designed to focus on career assessments, resume writing, interview skills, and can also include 
college readiness components.  This will be offered at the Guadalupe South Mountain Community College center.

Guadalupe Town Residents Enjoy FREE TUITION

For more information please contact: 

Mirella Urias at GWCC | 602-238-4351 | mirella.urias@gatewaycc.edu 
Kyle Mitchell at SMCC | 602-243-8340 | kyle.mitchell@southmountaincc.edu

Building Guadalupe’s Future
The Town of Guadalupe partners with Maricopa County Community Colleges District

The Maricopa County Community College District (MCCCD) is an EEO/AA institution and an equal opportunity employer of protected veterans and individuals with 
disabilities. All qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, age, or 
national origin. A lack of English language skills will not be a barrier to admission and participation in the career and technical education programs of the District.

The Maricopa County Community College District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability or age in its programs or activities. 
For Title IX/504 concerns, call the following number to reach the appointed coordinator:  (480) 731-8499.  For additional information, as well as a listing of all 
coordinators within the Maricopa College system, visit www.maricopa.edu/non-discrimination.

Page 117



Asociado Certificado en Logística 
Aprenda una nueva carrera en una semana.  Este programa prepara a los estudiantes para trabajar en la cadena 
de suministro e industria de almacenamiento (supply chain and warehousing).  Los beneficios a corto plazo de los 
programas le permiten a usted aprender y estudiar para el examen de certificación en una semana.  El programa 
está asociado con empleadores que desean contratar a graduados exitosos.  Usted debe tener 18 años de edad, ser 
elegible para trabajar en los Estados Unidos, aprobar un examen cronometrado en una computadora.  Esto se llevará 
a cabo tanto en el centro de Guadalupe South Mountain Community College como en el campus central de la ciudad 
de GateWay Community College. 

Instalador eléctrico 
Este es un programa de 372 horas que resultará en un Certificado de Competencia (CCT) para Instalador Eléctrico 
que introduce los fundamentos de la teoría eléctrica, cableado residencial, y una comprensión básica de los 
requisitos de electricidad del Código Eléctrico Nacional (NEC).  Esto se llevará a cabo tanto el centro de Guadalupe 
South Mountain Community College como el campus central de la ciudad de GateWay Community College.

Fundamentos de carrera 
Este es un programa sin crédito diseñado para enfocarse en evaluaciones de carrera, reanudar la escritura, 
habilidades de entrevista, y también puede incluir componentes de preparación para la universidad.  Esto se ofrecerá 
en el centro de Guadalupe South Mountain Community College.

Para obtener más información, por favor comuníquese con: 

Mirella Urias at GWCC | 602-238-4351 | mirella.urias@gatewaycc.edu 
Kyle Mitchell at SMCC | 602-243-8340 | kyle.mitchell@southmountaincc.edu

Construyendo el Futuro de Guadalupe

The Maricopa County Community College District (MCCCD) is an EEO/AA institution and an equal opportunity employer of protected veterans and individuals with 
disabilities. All qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, age, or 
national origin. A lack of English language skills will not be a barrier to admission and participation in the career and technical education programs of the District.

The Maricopa County Community College District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability or age in its programs or activities. 
For Title IX/504 concerns, call the following number to reach the appointed coordinator:  (480) 731-8499.  For additional information, as well as a listing of all 
coordinators within the Maricopa College system, visit www.maricopa.edu/non-discrimination.

Page 118


	12 09 19 RCM Agenda
	Informational Cover Memo
	D1.  11 14 19 Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	G1.  Guadalupe Animal Control Ordinance
	G2. 2019  Grants Summary Table
	G3.  R2019.22 - Ak-Chin IGA
	Ak Chin Grant Agreement Exhibit A
	Ak-Chin Grant Agreement

	G4.  Neighborhood Traffic Safety Presentation
	PYT Speed Humps request
	Speed Voume Data Tables

	G5. G6.  Ordinance No. O2019.04
	G7. Solid Waste Financial Report
	Solid Waste Financial Report Powerpoint Presentation

	G8. Solid Waste RAD Award of Contract
	Trash & Recycle Survey Results
	NOTICE OF INTENT - INCREASE IN FEES - ARS
	Notice of Intent - Increase solid waste collection services fees

	G9.  MCC District Educational Services Agreement
	Educational Gateway flyer




